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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Infopark
Properties Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. (IST) at shorter
notice through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon,

To re-appoint Mr. Ritesh Sachdev (DIN: 08099511) as a Director of the Company, who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3.

To consider and approve appointment of Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani as Director,
liable to retire by rotation

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof and any rules made thereunder, for the time being in force) ("the Act”) and
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI Regulations”), as amended, and pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and subject to such other approvals as may be required,
Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani (DIN: 09128661), who was appointed as an Additional Director by
the Board of Directors with effect from July 30, 2024 and is eligible for appointment as
Director, liable o retire by rotation and in respect of whom the Board has proposed and
received a notice in writing under Section 160 the Act, from a member (CPP Investment Board
Private Holdings (4) Inc) proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any other person authorized by the
Board be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as may be deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
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4. To consider and approve alteration of Articles of Association of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all
other. applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and the amended and restated
shareholder agreement dated 24 June, 2022 executed between the Company, Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc, TRIL Infopark Limited
(now merged with Company) and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as amended from time to time, and
subject to approvals, permissions and sanctions from the appropriate authority, if any, the
approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to substitute the following articles in existing
set of Articles of Association of the Company as stated below:

1. Article 2(e)

"the Shareholders Agreement” means the amended and restated shareholders agreement dated

June 24, 2022 and amended and restated with effect from April 8 2022, executed among CPP
Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc., Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, the Company,
TRIL Infopark Limited and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as amended from time to time including by
the first amendment letter agreement dated March 24, 2023 and the second amendment dated
May 30, 2024.”

II. Article 171(b)(3)

“Undertaking any expenditure (whether as a single transaction or a series of transactions) in any
single category (except for capital expenditure) in excess of 110% (one hundred and ten percent)
of the annual budgeted expenditure for such category in the Approved Annual Budget.
Undertaking any capital expenditure (unless expressly and specifically indluded in the Approved
Annual Budget) in a single or series of refated transactions in excess INR 200,000,000.”

III. Article 171(b)(4)

"Undertaking aggregate expenditures in excess of 110% (one hundred and ten percent) of the
aggregate annual budgeted expenditure (except for capital expenditure) in the Approved Annual
Budget. Undertaking any capital expenditure (unfess expressly and specifically included in the
Approved Annual Budget) in a single or series of related transactions in excess INR 200,000,000.”
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IV. Article 171(b)(8)

"Unless expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and Approved Annual Budget,
undertaking any singfe transaction or series of related transactions involving acquisition of land,
assets or capital expenditure, the value of which in each case, exceeds INR 200,000,000.”

V. Article 171(b)(19)

"Approving the Leasing Parameters for the Company (including, in each case, any amendments,
modifications, addendum or additions to any of the then-existing Leasing Parameters) and uniess
approved in the Business Plan and the Approved Annual Budget, any leasing (including renewal

4

of a lease, or amendment to any existing lease) that is a deviation from the Leasing Parameters.”

VI. Article 171{b)(20)

"Untess expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and the Approved Annual Budget,
approving: (a) any lease (including renewal of a lease, or amenament to any existing fease) in
relation to an area in excess of 100,000 (one hundred thousand) sq. ft. of the Net Leasable Area
in the Property (including where the tenant has executed more than one lease for the area in
excess of 100,000 (one hundred thousand) sq. ft. of the Net Leasable Area in the Property, a
renewal or amendment of any one of the leases with such tenant) which is a deviation from the
Leasing Parameters; or (b) any lease for an additional area with a Tenant where (i) such additional
area is in excess of 50,000 (fifty thousand) sq. ft. of the Net Leasable Area in the Property and
(77} along with the existing area leased by such Tenant exceeds 100,000 (one hundred thousand)
5q. ft. of the Net Leasable Area in the Property and (iii) which is a deviation from the Leasing
Parameters.”

VII. Article 171(b){(32)

"Unless expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and Approved Annual Budget,
entering into, amending, renewing, waiving and enforcing rights under and/or terminating any
contract (other than leases) with an annual value in excess of INR 200,000,000.”

VIII. Article 171(c)(i)(D)

“the Investor Shareholder approves such Investor Reserved Matter by indicating 'Yes’ against
such Investor Reserved Matter in response to the form set forth in Exhibit E provided by the
Company (which form describes with particularity the matter for which consent is being requested
from the Investor Shareholder pursuant to this Section 171) and sends it over e-mail to the
Company, or by providing its consent to an Investor Reserved Matter over an e-maif sent to the
Company.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take all the
requisite, incidental, consequential steps to implement the above resolution and to perform all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, any
question, query, or doubt that may arise in this regard, and to execute/publish all such notices,
deeds, agreements, papers and writings as may be necessary and required for giving effect to
this resolution.”

5. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,10,000/-
(Rupees One Lakh Ten Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. SBK & Associates, Cost Accountants, who are
appointed by Board as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the
Company, for the financial year 2024-25.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any other person authorized by the Board
be and are hereby severally authorized to do ail such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For Infopark Properties Limited

©
N
\%ﬂ\f\’&/
Arushi Singhal
Company Secretary Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR),
Taramani, Chennai — 600113

Registered Office:

Date: July 30, 2024
Place: Chennai
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated
May 5, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” read with General Circular No.
14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, General
Circular No,39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December
14, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, and General Circular No. 9/2023
dated September 25, 2023, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special
resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder”
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars™) permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and MCA
Circulars, the third Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company is being held through
VC / OAVM on Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 2.00 p.m. (IST). The deemed venue for the
Meeting will be “E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033”
where majority of members reside.

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH
VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS
BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS, THE
FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE
AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND
ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Corporate Members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to attend the
AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified copy of its Board or
governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company, authorising them to attend and
vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM.

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts
concerning the business under Item No. 3 to 5 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The relevant
details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
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10.

11.

12.

Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at
this AGM are also annexed

As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated
May 5, 2020, the matter of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 3 to 5 of the
accompanying Notice, is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, forming part
of this Notice.

The Company shall provide to Members the required link to attend the AGM of the Company
at the registered email address / at the email address of their authorized representative(s)
before the meeting, which would facilitate the Members/Authorized Representatives, as the
case may be, to attend the AGM via VC or OAVM. In case, any Member/Authorized
Representative, as the case may be, need any assistance with using the technology, can
contact the Company at following email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in or call during the business
hours at 022 6661 4444,

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 15 minutes
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting subject to conclusion of AGM,
by clicking on the invitation link which has been provided separately while circulation of notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along with the Annual
Report for the Financial Year 2023-2024, is being sent by electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses
are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants ("DPs").

Members are requested to intimate changeé, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address,
e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney
registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic
form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in physical form,
guoting their folio no.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered
their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a
Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may
submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP
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13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA at www.kfintech.com in case
the shares are held in physical form, quoting your folio no.

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the
Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record additional details of Members,
including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at
the registered office or to the Registrar in physical mode, after restoring normalcy or in
holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective DP
only and not to the Company or RTA.

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an
email to trilsec@tatarealty.in the conclusion of the Meeting. The Members who would like to
express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or
send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio no./DP ID and Client ID), to the date
of the AGM by email at trilsec@tatarealty.in.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are
interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for
inspection by the members during the AGM. Members who wish to inspect the same can send
an email to trilsec@tatarealty.in up to the conclusion of the Meeting.

As the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting shall be
conducted through show of hands (except for Item No. 2 & 3, for which voting will be
conducted through poll), unless demand for a poll is made by any member in accordance with
Section 109 of the Act. In case of a poll on any resolution at the AGM, Members are requested
to convey their vote by e-mail.

The voting at the meeting for business mentioned under Item no. 2 & 3 shall be conducted
through Poll. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Members shall case their vote on the
resolution only by sending signed poll papers via email through their registered email
addresses/ email address of authorized representative. The said email shall only be sent to
the email id of scrutinizer i.e. secretarial@csdhanapal.com . Poli paper is being sent along
with the notice of the AGM.

The Company has appointed M/s. S. Dhanapal & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries,
as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the poll process in fair and transparent manner.




INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
(CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646)
Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), Taramani,
Chennai- 600113, Tamil Nadu. Website — www.tatarealty.in
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in

19. In case of joint shareholders, the polling paper shall be sent to the first named holder or in
their absence to the joint holder attending the meeting as appearing in the chronological order
in the folio and the Polling paper shall be in Form No. MGT.12.

20. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice

By order of the Board
For Infopark Properties Limited

o
\\1"‘ N
\f\ﬂ N g /

Arushi Singhal

Registered Office:
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan
Inteltion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR),
Date: July 30, 2024 Taramani, Chennai — 600113

Place: Chennai
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement
sets out all material facts relating to business mentioned under following Items of the
accompanying notice:

Item No. 2:

The brief profile of Mr. Ritesh Sachdev (DIN: 08099511) in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2 on
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided in
Annexure - A.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board recommends the proposed
resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the accompanying notice for the approval of members by way
of ordinary resolution.

Except Mr. Ritesh Sachdev, none of the directors of the Company or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the accompanying notice

Item No. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani
(DIN: 09128661), as an Additional Director of the Company effective July 30, 2024, pursuant to
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rules framed thereunder
and as per Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended. Further, as per the provisions of Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Chalsani shall hold the office till
the next general meeting or three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier.

Accordingly, the Company has received the consent letter in Form DIR 2 from Mr. Chalsani to act
as a Director of the Company. The Company has also received a declaration confirming that he is
not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has, in terms of Section 160{1) of the Act, received a notice from a member (CPP
Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc) proposing his candidature for the office of Director,
liable to retire by rotation.
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The brief profile of Mr. Chalsani and other details as required to be disclosed under Secretarial
Standard - 2 on General Meetings (S5-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
is annexed here as Annexure -A.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board recommends the proposed
resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice for the approval of members by way
of ordinary resolution.

Except Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani, none of the directors of the Company or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the resclution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice.

Item No. 4:

The Company vide first amendment letter agreement dated March 24, 2023, and the second
amendment dated May 30, 2024, has amended the restated and amended Shareholders
Agreement executed amongst Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“TRIL"), Infopark
Properties Limited, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc ("CPP”) and TRIL Infopark
Limited (now merged with Company) dated April 8, 2022, as amended further vide the first
amendment agreement dated June 24, 2022 ("SHA").

In accordance with the said SHA, certain provisions of the SHA were incorporated into the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Considering that the Company has entered into an agreement to amend the SHA, the Company
is required to make suitable amendments/additions/ substitution to existing clauses of Articles of
Association of the Company.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Act, approval of the Members is being
sought by way of Special Resolution, for amending the Articles of Association of the Company to
reflect the new Articles as per the amended SHA.

The draft of altered Articles of Association of the Company will be available for inspection through
electronic mode during the office hours on all working days till the date of AGM and during the
AGM,

The Directors recommend the proposed resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the accompanying
Notice, for the approval of the Members of the Company by way of a special resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives
is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item
No. 4 of accompanying Notice.
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Item No. 5:

The Board of Directors based on recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, at its
meeting held on June 03, 2024, had appointed M/s. SBK & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost
auditors of the Company for auditing the cost records of the Company for the financial year
2024-25 at a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,10,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Ten Thousand Only)
plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
Financial Year 2024-25 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the members as
set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice.

The Directors recommend the proposed resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the accompanying
Notice, for the approval of the Members of the Company by way of an ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives
is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item
No. 5 of accompanying Notice.

By order of the Board
For Infopark Properties Limited

7
\Nw‘*\“/“
Arushi Singhal

Registered Office:
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan
Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR),
Date: July 30, 2024 Taramani, Chennai -~ 600113

Place: Chennai
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Annexure — A

Information pursuant to Secretarial Standard- 2 on General Meetings (S5-2) issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Appointment/ Re-
appointment/ fixation of remuneration of Directors

Name Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani, Mr. Ritesh Sachdev

DIN: 09128661 DIN: 08099511
Designation Non — Executive Director Non — Executive Director
Age 36 years 49 years

Qualification

MBA (Finance) from Indian
Institute of Management, Calcutta,
Masters in Technology
(Nanoelectronics) and Bachelors in
Technology (Electrical Engineering)
from the Indian Institute of
Technology, Kharagpur

Post—Graduate Diploma in Business
Management from Leeds Business
School and a bachelor's degree in
civil  engineering from B.LE.T
Davanagere

Experience

Mr. Chalsani is a Director with the
CPP Investments” Real Estate
Investments group in India. The
Real Estate group in India focuses
on investments alongside top tier
partners in key sectors such as
office, retail, industrial, residential
and data centres.

Prior to joining CPP Investments in
2016, he was at Paragon Partners,
& South Asia-focused private equity
and  alternative  investments
business where he was responsible
for investment coverage across
consumer technology, financial
services and industrials sectors. He
started his career with Barclays
Capital (London / Singapore),

Mr. Sachdev’s diverse career in
Commercial Real Estate spans more
than 20+ vyears both with
Developers and Service Providers
(International Property Consulting
Firms/IPC’s).

Mr. Sachdev brings with him deep
understanding of Real Estate and ig
acclaimed for fostering deep and
strategic relationships with both
Fortune 500 occupiers and IPC
across most markets in India|
regionally within APAC and Globally.
Mr. Sachdev’s last assignment wag
with Colliers International as Head
of Occupier Services, India & MD
South India. Prior to joining Cotliers,

he spent 14 years with Cushman &
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Nomura International (Hong Ko'ﬁ'g)
and Kotak Investment Advisors
Limited (Mumbai) in fixed income
trading and corporate credit
investing verticals. He is also a co-
founder of Sportskeeda, a digitally
native global sports media
platform.

Wakefield as MD, South India an
MD for its Tenant Advisory Group.
Prior to his stint with Cushman &
Wakefield and Colliers
International, Mr. Sachdev was alsa
associated with DLF Limited and the
Australian Trade Commission.

Terms of

appointment

As per the amended and restated
shareholders agreement dated
June 24, 2022 and amended and
restated with effect from April 8,

2022, executed among CPP
Investment Board Private Holdings
(4) Inc., Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited, the

Company, TRIL Infopark Limited
and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as
amended from time to time
including by the first amendment
letter agreement dated March 24,
2023 and the second amendment
dated May 30, 2024

Director liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration NIL NIL

sought to be paid

Remuneration last | NA NA

drawn

Date of first | July 30, 2024 November 02, 2021
appointment '

Shareholding in the | NIL NIL

Company

Relationship  with | NA NA

KMP/Director
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No. of Board
Meetings attended
during FY 2023-24

NA

Other Directorship

Directorship in the following
companies.

1. One Boat Club Constructions
and Real Estate Private
Limited

2. Emine Realty Private Limited

3. RMZ C(City Estates Private
Limited

4. Prahitha Constructions Private
Limited

5. RMZ One Paramount Private
Limited

6. Plutocrat Commercial Real
Estate Private Limited

7. RMZ Infinity (Chennai) Private
Limited

in the following

Minerals and
Company Private

Realtors Private|

Membership/Chair
manship of
committees of the
other Boards

Nil

3 outof 6
Directorship
companies:
1. Industrial

Chemical

Limited
2. Mikado

Limited
Nil

By order of the Board

For Infopark Properties Limited

&
I\,{" |U{__|Lb4'/

Arushi Singhal

Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516)

Date: July 30, 2024
Place: Chennai

Registered Office:

Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan

Inteliion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR),
Taramani, Chennai — 600113
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BOARD'S REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report ("the Report™) of Infopark Properties
Limited (the "Company” or “IPL") along with the audited financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024,

1. Financial Results

Key highlights of financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, are
summarized as under:

(Rs. in lakhs)
} Standalone Standalone
FY — 2023-24 FY — 2022-23
i (Restated)*
Revenue 594.62 474.50
Other income 18.98 11.25
Total income 613.60 485.75
Expenses
Operating expenditure 154.34 157,12
Depreciation and amortization expenses 163.86 171.40
Total Expenses 318.20 328.52
Profit/ (Loss) before finance cost and tax 295.40 157.22
Finance cost 450.99 409 .42
{Loss) before tax {195.59) (252.20)
Tax expense (66.19) (81.05)
(Loss) for the year (129.40) [ @71.15)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company - -
Non-Controiling Interest - -

* The Company has restated the financial results for prior periods i.e. quarter and year ended 31 March
2023 pursuant to the order by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennal Bench, dated June
21, 2023, attested true copy received by the Company on June 30, 2023 and filed with the ROC on July
24, 2023, wherein the NCLT has approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption ("Merger') between
TRIL Infopark Limited {Transferor Company) and Infopark Properties Limited (Transferee Company,).

2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Board of Directors of your
Company do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24,
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3. Transfer to Reserves
Your directors did not recommend transferring any funds to the reserves of the Company.
4. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects

Commercial Real Estate

In Chennai, the office stock increased by 5.7 million sq.ft. from 79.8 million sq.ft. to 85.5
million sq. ft in CY 2022 and the same grew to 86.2 miillion sq. ft. by CY Q1 2023. The gross
office absorption stood at 9.7 million sq.ft. in CY 2023, which was the highest ever in the city,
and is followed by 1.8 million sq. ft .in Q1 2023. Overall vacancy rate in the city decreased
from 20.1% to 17.9% in 2023.

While grappling with monetary tightening and geopalitical challenges, the Indian economy
showed significant resilience in 2023. It is anticipated to exhibit similar resilience in 2024 led
by strong domestic growth and sustained capital expenditure. Chennai will be increasingly
preferred by occupiers on account of quality supply addition, presence of skilled talent, robust
infrastructure and competitive costs. ‘

*Sources: CBRE Research, Media reports, Press articles

5. Company’s Performance

During FY 2023-24 the Company has generated total revenue of INR 613.60 Crores as against
the previous year’s revenue of INR 485.75 Crores. Expenditure incurred for FY 2023 - 24 was
INR 809.19 crores as against INR 737.95 crores in the previous year resulting in Net loss of

INR 129.40 crores as against Net loss of INR 171.15 crores in the previous year.

State of the Company’s Affairs:

The Company is a subsidiary of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, and is in the domain
of design, development and management of commercial assets. The Processing Zone of
Ramanujan Intellion Park Comprises of 6 IT Buildings admeasuring about 4.60 million sq. ftis
Rent Generating and Operational, The Company as a part of its planned product mix has
developed a 1,500-seater International Integrated Convention Center and 112 rooms Serviced
Apartments in the Non-Processing Zone (NPZ).

Pursuant to Rule 11B of the SEZ Rules, 2006, the Company has filed an application with the
Board of Approval on SEZs, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Department of Commerce
(SEZ Section), for demarcation of 38,007.61 sq. mtrs, SEZ processing built-up area of the
Company as Non — Processing Area.

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations, and we are fully committed to
maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to embody
the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees, and vendor partners. Our
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ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us focused on excellence, empathy
and innovation acrogss the customer journey. In order to bring additional confidence to tenants
about our commitment to, sustainability, wellness and safety, the Company undertook
measures and achieved the following certifications:

» India’s first and Globally 9th Net Zero Carbon Rated Asset by International Finance
Corpaoration (IFC)

» EDGE Advanced Certification by International Finance Cerporation

¢ Platinum level WELL Core Certification (two buildings) and Pre-Certifications (four
buildings)

6. Update on Merger

The Board of the Company ("Transferee Company”) and its subsidiary Company TRIL Infopark
Limited ("Transferor Company”) at their meeting held on September 29, 2022, had approved
the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited with Infopark Properties Limited
(“Scheme of Merger”) and filed the Scheme with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chennai Bench, ("NCLT™.

The NCLT vide its order dated June 21, 2023, had approved the Scheme of Merger by
Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited with Infopark Properties Limited. The attested true copy
of the NCLT Order was received by the Company on June 30, 2023, and filed with the ROC
on July 24, 2023, and accordingly the Scheme became effective from July 24, 2023.

Further, the Company had also received the Special Economic Zone (SEZ) license from the
UAC authorities on July 17, 2023.

7. Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2024, the Company does not have any subsidiary Company.

8. Share Capital and Other Securities:

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, pursuant to the Scheme of Merger the Company had issued
and allotted 1 equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each to the Sharcholders of TRIL Infopark
Limited.

As of March 31, 2024, the issued, subscribed, and paid-up equity share capital of the Company

stands at Rs.74,98,43,570/- divided into 7,49,84,357 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each.
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B. Debt Management:

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has outstanding debt of Rs. 5747.47 cores {including
interest)}.

The Company raises debt through varicus sources such as Non-Convertible Debentures,
Short/long term loans and Qverdraft facilities and Inter-Corporate Deposits.

C. Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

P :
Instrument Rating Rating Aot (In Remarks
Agency Crore)

Non-Convertible | -\ pF Ratings (CARE AA- (Stable) | 1700 Assigned
Debenture g g
Non- rtib!

on-Convertible | -\oF patings | CARE A- (Stable) | T 681.10 | Re-affirmed
Debenture
Long Term Bank )
Facilities CARE Ratings | CARE AA- (Stable) | 2159.00 Re-affirmed

Further, the Non ~ Convertible Debentures (*NCDs") issued to Standard Chartered Bank
(Mauritius) Limited amounting to INR 19,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Nineteen Hundred
Crores Only) were repaid in full by the Company on its due date i.e. June 27, 2024, and there
were no outstanding under the said issue. Taking cognizance of this, CARE Ratings Limited
has withdrawn their credit rating CARE A+ as assigned for the said NCD issue, with effect
from July 25, 2024.

9. Depository System

Your Company’s Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN) assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is
INEOKZX01018. As on March 31, 2024, 100% of Equity Shares of your Company were held in
dematerialized form. In case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Cormpany or
the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e., Kfin Technologies Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower
B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032, Phone:
+91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602,

10.Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained at the Group level, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors, including the audit of internal financial controls over finandial reporting by the
statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board
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committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2023-24,

Pursuant to Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the Board of Directors, to the
best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:

i.  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures;

fi. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2024, and of the loss of
the Company for that period;

iii.  they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.  they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v.  They have laid down internal financial contrals tc be followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

vi.  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

11.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company’s compaosition of Board is an adeguate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors. In additicn to the provisions of the Act, the governance guidelines
adopted by the Board set out the role and responsibility of the Board, composition of the
Beard and code of conduct.

The Regulation 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015 (as amended) ("SEBI Listing Regulations™) became applicable to the Company with effect
from June 29, 2022, on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2025, and on a mandatory
basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disciosure Requirements) (Amendment} Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 2024,

As on March 31, 2024, Board of your Company consists of following Directors:

1. Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Chairman and Non — Executive Director
2. Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni - Non- Executive Director
3. Mr. Ritesh Sachdev - Non- Executive Director
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4. Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar - Non- Executive and Independent Director
5. Mr. Kamlesh Parekh - Non- Executive and Independent Director
6. Ms. Sucheta Shah - Non- Executive and Independent Director

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni (DIN: $0382218), Director, was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. February 01, 2024.

Mr. Ritesh Sachdev, (DIN:08099511), Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking Shareholders’ approval
for his re-appointment farms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM,

Mr. Ankur Gulati (DIN: 07857686), Director of the Company resigned from the Company w.e.f.
February 01, 2024, on account of other professicnal engagements. The Board appreciated the
contribution made by him during his tenure.

Pursuant to the regulation 17(1C} of the SEBI Listing Regulations, approval of Sharehalders was
required for appointment of a person on the Board or as a manager at the next general meeting
or within a time of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. Accordingly,
the Members of the Company regularized, and approved the appointment of Mr. Hari Krishna
Veerapaneni (DIN: 00382218) as Director of the Company at their Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on April 25, 2024,

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni (DIN: Q0382218) Director of the Company resigned from the
Company w.e.f. closure of business hours on July 30, 2024, on account of other professional
engagements. The Board appreciated the contribution made by him during his tenure.

Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani (DIN: 09128661), Director, was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. July 30, 2024. A resolution seeking Shareholders” approval for
his appointment as Director forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Secticn 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors have submitted
Declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing
Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situaticn
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their abifity to
discharge their duties.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Campany had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees
of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company
possess the requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and they hold the highest
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standards of integrity. The Directors are compliant with the provisions of Rule & of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as applicable.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company as on March 31, 2024, are:

1. Mr. Deepak Porayath

2. Mr. V. Vijay Kumar
3. Ms. Arushi Singhal

- Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)

- Company Secretary {CS)

12.DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

The details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) who were appointed or have
resigned from April 01, 2023, till the date of this report are as follows:

81, | Name of the | Designation Reason for Change | Date of
No. | Director/ KMP i.e. Appointment/ | Appointment/
Cessation/Change | Cessation/
in Designation Change in
Designation

1. Mr. Ankur Gulati | Director Cessation February 01, 2024
Mr. Hari Krishna | Additicnal Appointment February G1, 2024
Veerapaneni Director

3. Mr. V. Vijay | Chief  Financial | Appointment July 24, 2023
Kumar Officer

4, Mr. Jagatpal | Company Cessation August 02, 2023

; Singh Secretary

5, Mr. Deepak | Chief Executive | Appointment August 08, 2023
Porayath Officer

6. Ms. Arushi | Company Appointment August 08, 2023
Singhal Secretary

7. Mr. Hari Krishna | Director Change in Designation | April 25, 2024
Veerapaneni '

8. Mr, Hari Krishna | Director Cessation July 31, 2024
Veerapaneni

9, Mr. Venkat Rohan | Additional Appointment July 30, 2024
Chalsani Director ]

13.Number of Meetings of the Board

There were 6(Six) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were
held on May 23, 2023, July 20, 2023, August 08, 2023, September 05, 2023, November 07,
2023, and February 05, 2024. Details of the Directors’ attendance is given herein below:
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[ Name of the Board Member | Board Meeting Attendance |

Mr. Sanjay Duftt 6 out of 6

Mr. Ritesh Sachdev ~ | 3outofé6

Mr. Ankur Gulati 5out of 5

(Resigned w.e.f. February 01, 2024)

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 6 out of 6

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh | 6outof 6

Ms. Sucheta Shah 6 out of 6

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni loutofi

{Appointed w.e.f. February 01, 2024)

14.Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own perfermance and
individual Directors including Chairman pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from all the
Directors on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of Board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking input from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. ’

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors for FY 2023 — 24 without presence of Non-
Independent Directors was held on May 23, 2023. The Independent Directors at the said
meeting shared their views for evaluation amongst themselves over the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Board as a whale and the Chairman of the Company, taking into
account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of
individual Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director
to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The Chalrman also had
one on one meeting with Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussing
the performance of the Board.

In the Board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
performance of the Board, its committees, and individual Directors was also discussed.
Performance evaluation of independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the
independent Director being evaluated.
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15.Committees of Board of Directors

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in
fine with the delegated authority. The following Committees constituted by the Board, function
according to their respective roles and defined scope:

» Audit Committee

* Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Risk Management Committee

The details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective
committees are given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this
Repert. Further, during the year under review, all recommendations made by the various
committees were accepted by the Board.

16.Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year under review the provisions of Section 135 of the Act were not applicable to
the Company.

17.Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work perfarmed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant
Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the
Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adeguate internal financiai controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of
the Company, there exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the
size of the Company.

18.Auditors

Statutory Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company at their 1% Annual General Meeting held on September 29,
2022, had appointed M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration
No.:101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years
from the conclusion of first 1% AGM till the conclusion of 6™ consecutive AGM of the Company
to be held in calendar year 2027. The Auditors have conveyed their eligibility and willingness
to continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25.
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Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, and the Companies {(Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directars your Company had
appointed M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directars of your Company at their meeting held on August 08, 2023, had
appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP as the internal auditors of the Company for
the financial year 2023-24.

Cost Auditors

The provisions pertaining to Section 148 of the Act were not applicable to the Company for
FY 2023 - 24. The Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on
June 03, 2024, has appointed M/s SBK & Associates as Cost Auditor of the Company for FY
2024-25. A resolution seeking ratification of the Members for the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for FY 2024-25 forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM.

19, Auditor’s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company, in their Reports on the Financial
Statements of the Company for FY 2023-24,

The Secretarial Audit Report received from M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, LLP, Practicing
Company Secretaries, in the prescribed Form No. MR - 3 for the FY 2023-24 is annexed to
this Report and marked as "Annexure B”. There are ng qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimers in their Secretarial Audit Report, on the Secretarial and other related
records of the Company, for FY 2023-24.

20.Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Palicy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management Charter & Policy has been developed with the
objective of establishing a commeon understanding & methodology for identifying, assessing,
responding, monitoring & reporting to provide management, the Board of Directors with the
assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk
Management Steering Committee ('RMSC") has been formed by Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited, holding Company. The charter and policies provide the overall framework for the Risk
Management process which includes risk identification, assessment, evolution, treatment and
other related processes. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM Organization structure
comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is responsible for adopting and
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implementing the RM Framework across the Organizaticn. They are charged with the
responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various initiatives
to the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and other stakeholders on a regular basis.

21.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falis within the scope of the definition of “Infrastructure Company” as provided
by the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
{except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

22 Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Related Party Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper comnpliance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The said Policy also provides guidance
for entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined
and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between
the Company and its related parties. The Policy is available on the website of the Company
i.e., www.tatarealty.in.

During the vear under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length
basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act. Given that all the
transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at arm'’s length the
Company and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the transactions were
material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h} of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 and hence does not form part of this report.

23.Annual Return
As per the requirements of Section 92(3} and 134(3)}a) of the Act and Rules framed

thereunder, the annual return for FY 2023-24 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall be
placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in

24.Particulars of Employees

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 20i4, pursuant to the which the
Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act, read
along with Rules framed thereunder, Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration
and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 were not
applicable to the Company during the year under review.
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25.Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively,

26.Deposits from Public

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was
outstanding as on the date of the balance shest,

27.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Qutgo

The particulars relating to the Conservétion of Energy, Technology Absarption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Rule 8(3) of
the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the "Annexure C” to this report.

28.Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in
Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operation
in future.

29.Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

The details of material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate, and the date of the report are given below:

A. Issuance of Securities

The Company had issued and allotted following securities from March 31, 2024, till date of
this report:
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| Particulars | No. of | Face Issue Price | Total Amount | Date of
Securities | Value (in INR) | (in INR) Allotment

| (in INR) |

Optionally 17,85,00,000 | 10 10 1,78,50,00,000 [ June 07, 2024
Convertible

Debentures

Compuisorily | 17,15,00,000 ! 10 10 1,71,50,00,000 | June 07, 2024
Convertible

Debentures

Listed Non - 87,500 1,00,000 | 1,00,000 8,750,000,000 | June 19, 2024
Convertible

Debentures

Non ~| 82,500 ' 1,006,000 | 1,00,000 825,00,00,000 | June 26, 2024
Convertible

Debentures :

B. Repayment of Securities

Your Company had issued and allotted Non — Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") to Standard
Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited amounting to INR 19,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Nineteen Hundred Crores Only) on June 27, 2022, for a period of 2 years. The said NCDs were
repaid in full by the Company on their due date i.e. June 27, 2024, and there were no
outstanding under the said issue.

30.Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace, The Company has not
received any complaints about alleged harassment during the year under review.

31.Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism Palicy ("the Policy”), under
Section 177 of the Act with a view to provide a mechanism for empioyees and Directors of the
Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against
victimisation. This policy is alsa placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in
and would help to create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an
alarm where they see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant{s) are protected from
retribution, whether within or outside the organization and makes provision for direct access
to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm
that during FY 2023-24, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee. Further, no Whistle-blower complaint was received by the Company
during FY 2023- 24,
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The Board of Directors of your Company had amended and adopted the revised Whistle
Blower/ Vigil Mechanism Policy at their meeting held on February 05, 2024.

32.Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate
thereon, for the year under review prepared in accordance with Part C of Schedule V of the
Listing Regulations, form part of this Annual Report as "Annexure D"

33.General

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit
Committee or Board. There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
There has been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there has been no details, which shall be required to be
given as regard to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof, as no such events have been occurred,

34.Acknowledgement

The Directors thank the Company’s employees, customers, vendors, investors and academic
partners for their continuous support,

The Directors also thank the Government of India, Governments of various states in India,
Governments of various countries and concerned Government departments and agencies for
their co-operation.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Infopark Properties Limited

e T T
Sanjay Dutt
Chairman

DIN: 05251670

Date: July 30, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Encl:

Annexure A — Remuneration Policy- Directors, KMP and other employees

Annexure B — Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3)

Annexure C - Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
& Outgo

Annexure D - Corporate Governance Report
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Annexure “A”

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along with
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

The remuneration policy of the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture
and is in alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding principles
for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to
the Board the remuneration of the Directars, key managerial personnel, and other employees
of the Company.

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competitive remuneration to our
executives and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified
individual to the Company.

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the Company and the
role, the market standing, skills and experience, Company’s capacity to pay in compliance to
pay related regulatory compliance requirements.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule IT of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Requlations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions
of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail, and the Company
shall abide by the applicable law.

While fermulating this paolicy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC"} has
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient ta attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b} relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(¢) remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and fong-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.
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Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

A. Remuneration for independent Directors and non-independent non-executive Directors

(i) Independent Directors ("ID") and non-independent nonexecutive Directors ("NED")
may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees
of which they may he Members) and commission within regulatory limits.

(in Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission
will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(i) Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company
{taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth
imperatives).

(iv)  Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

) The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by
the NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors,
Shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be
decided by the Board,

(viy  The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each Director
based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by varicus factors
including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual
contributions at the meetings and contributions made by Directors other than in
meetings.

(vii)  In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director
such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the Director while
performing his/her role as a Director of the Company. This could in¢lude reascnable
expenditure incurred by the Director for attending Board / Board committee meetings,
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with Shareholders / creditors /
management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the Company for
Directors) and in abtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his/her duties as a Director.

B. Remuneration pavable to Directer for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for

services rendered by such Director in any other capacity, unless:

0 The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

(i The NRC is of the opinion that the Director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.
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C. Remuneration for Managing Director ("MD"} Executive Directors ("ED™) and Key
Management Personnel ("KMP)

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs, Senior
Management and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic salary, allowances,
perquisites and other benefits. Remuneration also covers contribution towards social security
benefits / retirement benefits in accordance with statutory provisions as applicable.

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration / performance-linked
incentive / annual performance linked bonus subject to achievement of certain defined
qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and such other parameters as may be
considered appropriate from time to time by the NRC and the Board. The performance linked
incentive is driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the performance
of the Company.

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the Shareholders. In case of any
change, the same would require the approval of the Shareholders.

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as
may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of
the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/EDs would be based on performance as
evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.

D. Remuneration for other ernployees

The policy relating to emplayees would be as per the remuneration policy of the Company as
approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR within the overall
framework of above remuneration philesophy and guidelines.

Exclusion

Excludes employees covered by any long-term settlements or specific term contracts. The
remuneration for these employees would ke driven by the respective long-term settlements
or contracts.

Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is
responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.
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Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road
(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank)
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256
4553 0257 4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com

secretarial @csdhanapal.com
website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates LLP

Practising Company Secretaries

LLPIN ACB - 0368
Designated Partners : (Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008)

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., EC.S
N. Ramanathan, B.Com., EC.S
Smita Chirimar, M.Com., EC.S, DCG(ICSI)

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED,
Chennai

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED,
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted based on records made
available to us, in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion/understanding thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and made available to us and also the
information provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and Authorized Representatives
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we, on strength of those records, and information so
provided, hereby Report that in our opinion and understandings, the Company, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, appears to have complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also in our limited review, that the Company has
proper and required Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes’ book, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and made available to us, for the financial year ended on March 31,
2024 according to the applicable provisions of:
i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder as ap ]
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the r@e&m ]
to the extent applicable during the year;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings to the extent applicable;

.
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v] The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI ACT")to the extent applicable during the year:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with
respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (S5-2);
ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied in accordance with the
requirements to be met with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above to the required extent.

It is represented to us that the company has initiated measures, wherever required, to address
issues raised by the Statutory Authorities and Letters/Notices received by the Company during
the financial year, if any, under various enactments as applicable to the Company.

We further report that, subject to the above, the related documents that we have come across
depict that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted as applicable with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and consent for
shorter notice was obtained for detailed notes on agenda which were sent less than seven days
before the meeting and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that based on our limited review of the compliance mechanism established
by the Company, there appear adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has sought the approval of its
members for following major events, other than ordinary business at the AGM:

e To Consider and approve the Borrowing Limits of the Company

» To Consider and approve Creation of Charges on the assets of the Company

» Toapprove alteration of Articles of Association of the Company

We further report that the provisions of regulation 16 to 27 of Chapter IV of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
were applicable to the Company on a ‘comply or explain’ basis for the FY ended March 31, 2024
and the Company reported it is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with
applicable Regulations and that suitable explanations will be given in the Annual Report
wherever required in this matter.

We further report that, during the audit period, TRIL Infopark Limited has been merged with
the Company pursuant to Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (NCLT,
Chennai) order dated 30t june, 2023 and the appointed date for the scheme was 27.06.2022.
The company has issued 7 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each in terms of the scheme of merger by
absorption approved by NCLT, Chennai. The cross holding of shares with respect to the
companies involved in the scheme has been cancelled pursuant to the said scheme of merger.
Further, pursuant to the above merger by absorption, the Company altered the terms of its
Unsecured, Senior, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
1900 crores to Secured, Senior, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of Rs. 1900 crores and in-principle approval for listing the same was received from
BSE Ltd vide their letter dated 26.07.2023.

We further report that our Audit was subjected only to verifying adequacy of systems and
procedures that are in place for ensuring proper compliance by the Company and we are not
responsible for any lapses in those compliances on the part of the Company. The compliance
with provisions of applicable laws which have been subject to other audits have not been
independently reviewed by us and the reports wherever shown to us have been relied upon in
rendering our report.

A
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We further report that we have conducted the secretarial audit whenever required through
online verification and examination of records, as requested and facilitated by the company, for
the purpose of issuing this Report.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP
(Practicing Company Secretaries)
(Firm Regn. No. L2023TN014200)

LLPIN: ACB 0368

) -7 _~—
W Y Kt

O\ RAMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN
NS % (Designated Partner)
Place: Chennai SSah LA FCS. 6665
Date: 03.06.2024 CP No. 11084

Peer Review Certificate No.1107/2021
UDIN :F006665F000514392

This Report is to be read with our testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,
INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED,
Chennai

Auditor’s responsibility

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable
laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS") prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of [ndia (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory
and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls,
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the
CSAS. OQur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the company.
For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP
(Practicing Company Secretaries)
(Firm Regn. No. L2023TN014200)
LLPIN: ACB 0368

—

\\ ) |
| /#Qfé

RAMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN
(Designated Partner)
FCS. 6665

»

Place: Chennai e— CP No. 11084
Date: 03.06.2024 Peer Review Certificate No.1107 /2021

UDIN : FO06665F000514392
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Annexure “C"

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Qutgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken
certain feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has
impact on energy conservation,

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Having been designed with LEED Platinum Green Building Standards, the energy consumption
for the entire premise cperations has been around 15% less than the base line buildings
standards which substantially benefits both the end users and the Company. The Company
measures energy performance on an ongoing basis through the first of its kind “Energy
Management System” (EnMS-ISO:50001) for the last ten years.

ii. Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

The Company has installed Solar system in all the six towers {terrace area) with an installed
capacity of around 565KW. The Company has also tied up vide third party power purchase
viz., Wind Energy & Solar Energy to optimize cost.

The company has signed a Letter of Award with Tata Power for sourcing the Solar Power of
15 million units per annum for the next 20 years from FY 24-25 to enhance the renewable
energy consumption/green power.

iti.  Capital investment on energy conservation equipment

All operating equipment viz., chillers, AHU's etc. are fitted with Variable Frequency Drives
(VFD) which is for energy efficiency. We have installed a Sewage Treatment Plant which is
Membrane bio-reactor (MBR) system which treats the sewage for consumption of domestic as

well as cooling tower purposes, whereby we could conserve water consumption.

iv. Gate between Processing Zone & Non — Processing Zone

A gate between Taj Wellington Mews and IT campus was instalied at southwest corner of Taj
Wellington Mews for a seamless operation between these two properties after the approval
from MEPZ, Tambaram. This gate will also be used for the Emergency Evacuation to the OMR
directly from the IT Campus.
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v. Net Zero Building

The Company has received the “Net Zero Certificate” from IFC, the World Bank Organization.
Ramanujan Intellion Park is the first project received the Net Zero Certificate from IFC in India
and ninth project across the World,

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment in
energy conservation equipment.

{B) Asset Enhancement:

i. Carr Tower Lobby Refurbishment
The company has undertaken major retrofit of all the building lobbies in a phased
manner on the Campus. The Carr Tower lobby was refurbished at Podium and L5/Ground
level during last FY at a cost of Rs 150 million.

The renovation of food courts in Hardy and Neville Tower was being undertaken during
the period uncer review. The renovation work of the food court in Hardy Tower was
completed and the Neville Tower Food Court is under progress.

ii. Power Back-up
To enhance the efficiency of operation, the power back-up system in phase I of the
project was retrofitted with 5 Nos of MTU brand DG Sets at a cost of Rs 170 million.

iii. HVAC Enhancement
Two new Cooling Towers installed in phase I of the project ta replace the old ones which
significantly enhanced the efficiency of HVAC system.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption and Benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

As a part of Téchnological absorption, the Company has undertaken the following:

» Intellion plus app software was launched in Feb’24 to enhance the Customer experience.
This app integrates all the existing multiple apps into a single platform for a seamless
experience for the employees.

« The Company has planned to have Six (6) Retail Kiosks on the podium to enhance the
Custorner experience.

e landscape enhancement is done at driveway of Exit Gate, North Side driveway between
entry and exit gate and on podium.

» Additional transformer was added in phase I project to have a redundancy.

s Poly Urethane flooring for the parking area being done in stages in Phase I project.
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s Assessment of the Fagade works refated to water seepage, sealant issug, etc., done to
minimize the complaints.

» Membrane System for STP was imported from Japan to enhance the efficiency of
operation.

» 1300+ Energy and BTU meters in the Campus were connected through "Desigo” software
by Siemens for the seamless recording, tracking, monitoring, trend analysis etc., Also the
Company has extended the viewing access to ali the occupants to understand and review
the power consumption, trend analysis and conservation requirement for them.

» Regeneration of Power from the Elevator Operation in the Campus was installed and
commissioned in ali high rise Elevators

+ Recreation Room for the Drivers was inaugurated at US level in Cambridge Tower

» Vayujal — A devise generates the “Water” from the atmospheric air was installed on podium

e Lockated — A new visitor management system for the seamless entry was installed

+ The online metering system for Energy and BTU meters were installed

¢ Redundancy Server for IBMS was installed and commissioned

» Digitail Signage on the main entrance gate was installed

s Segway — Patrolling was introduced.

» Implemented Kaizen & Wealth out of waste initiatives.

{iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned fram the beginning
of the financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately
preceding FY 2023-24

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development,

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the
FY 2023-24

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

(in Crores)
Particulars Amountin Rs, '
Income NIL
Expenditure NIL ' ‘

By order of the Board of Directors
For Infopark Properties Limited

e ¢

Sanjay Dutt
Chairman
DIN: 05251670

Date: July 30, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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“*Annexure D"
Corporate Governance Report

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosephy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large.,

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company’s
hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company has a strong legacy of fair,
transparent and ethical governance practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director and the Executive Directors. The Roles, Responsibilities and duties of the Independent
Directors are stated in the appointment letter issued to the Independent Directors at the time
of their appointment. Further, the Company also briefs about the duties of Independent
Directors at the various farniliarization programmes conducted by the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened through the
Tata Business Excellence Model, the Tata Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
and the Code of Corporate Disclasure Practices ("Insider Trading Code™).

The Regulation 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015 (as amended) ("SEBI Listing Regulations™) became applicable tc the Company with effect
from June 29, 2022, on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2025, and on a mandatory
basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 2024. The
Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on ar before March 31, 2025.

2. Board of Directors

i The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its
success. The Company has a diverse Board of Directors including Women Director and
Directors from variety of backgrounds, skills, qualification, experiences, and
demographics which enables effective management of Business and enhances the
quality of decision made by the Board for achieving sustainable and balanced
development.

ii. As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 6 Directors comprising 3 Independent
Directors and 3 Non-executive Directors. The profiles of Directors is placed on the
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website of the Company https://www. tatarealty.in/board-of-directors. The present
strength of the Board meets the requirement of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

None of the Directors on the Board helds directorships in more than 10 public
companies. None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on
more than 7 listed entities, Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in
other public companies as on March 31, 2024, have been made by the Directors. None
of the Directors is related to each other.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation
16(1)(b) of tne SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25{8)
of SEBI Listing Regulations, confirmations from Independent Directors have been
received confirming that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which
exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent
Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b} of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and that they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors
have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act, read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

There were six {6) Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said

“meetings were hefd on May 23, 2023, July 20, 2023, August 08, 2023, September 05,

2023, November 07, 2023, and February 05, 2024, The necessary quorum was present
for all the meetings.

Web [ink of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors:

https://d1nfapflnbg58s.cloudfront.net/investor-documents/May2024/pvaFYSilcrg1 7PZMe9AW. pdf

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeling
("AGM™), names of other listed entities in which the Director is a director, and the
number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them
in other public limited companies as on March 31, 2024, are given herein below.
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Name  of | Category il‘alumbeerhethe Number of | Number of | Directorship |
the of r Directorships  in | Committee in other
{ Director Board attende | other Public | positions held in | listed entity
Meeting | d last | Companies cther Public | (Category of
(DIN) s AGM Companies Directorship
attende | held on - All
d Chairma | Membe = Chairma | Membe | professional
during | 20407 | n r n r )
| FY 2023
| ;8;3 (Yes/No
}
Mr. Sanjay | Non- | 6 out of | Yes 0 3 0 4 Tata
Dutt Independen | 6 Housing
Designatic | t, Non - Developmen
n: Executive t Company
Chairman Limited
DIN: (Debt
05251670 Listed)
Tata Realty
and
Infrastructu
re Limited
{Debt
Listed)
|
Mr. Ritesh | Non- 3outof | No 0 0 0 0 0
Sachdev Independen | 6
t, Non -
Designatio | gxecytive
n: Non —
Executive
Director
DIN:
08099511
|
Mr, Hari Non- | 1outof [ NA 0 1 0 0 0
Krishna Independen | 1
Veerapane | t, Non -
ni ** Executive
Designatio
n: Non —
Executive \
Director \
DIN:
00382218 }
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[Mrs. Independen-i, 6out | Yes [ Tata Housing
Sandhya Non- of & Development
Shailesh Executive Company
Kudtarkar Limited
Desighation:

Independent (Debt

Director Listed);

53?&1947 Tata Realty
and
Infrastructure
Limited {Debt
Listed)

Mr. Kamiesh | Independent, | 6 out Yes Tata Housing

Parekh Non- of & Development

Designation: | Executive Company

Independent Limited

Director

DIN: (Debt Listed)

00059140

Ms. Sucheta | Independent, | 6 out No Jayant Agro

Shah Non- of 6 — Organics

Designation: | Executive Limited

Independent (Equity

Director Listed}

DIN;

00322403 Landmark
Cars Limited
(Equity
Listed)
The Indian
Hume Pipe
Company
Limited
(Equity
Listed)

#Mr. Ankur Guiati had resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 01, 2024

** Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni was appeinted as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 01, 2024

Notes:

o« Other directorships do not include directorships of private limited companies, forefgn companies and
companies registered under Section & of the Act. Pursuant to Regulation 174 of SEBI Listing Reguiations
inclusion of only equity and debt listed entities are considered for calculation of directorship in listed

entity.

s None of the Director is a member of more than 10 committees or chalrman of more than 5 committees

across all the public companies in which he/she is a director.

*  For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and membership of
the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been considered as on March 31,

2024, as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations.
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vii.  The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company / business
policy and strategy apart from other statutory matters as required to be deliberated
and approved by the Board. In case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s
approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which are
noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting.

iX. During FY 2023-24, to the extent possible, information as mentioned in Part A of
Schedule IT of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration,

X, During FY 2023-24, 1(one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on
May 23, 2023.

Xi. Directors did not hold any equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2024. The
Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the year under review.

Xii.  With a view to achieve a sustainable development, the Company aims to have right
balance on its Board with attributes such as experience of diverse nature, qualifications,
knowledge and competencies in wide spectrum of functional areas reguired in the
context of Company’s business, gender representation etc.

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

| Skills Detailing of such skills Name of Directors, who
' have such skills/
expertise/ competence
Global Underé%éhd]ng, of global business dynamics, | Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Mr. Ritesh
. across various geographical markets, industry | Sachdev  and Mr.  Hari
Business verticals and regulatory jurisdicticns. Krishna Veerapaneni
Strategy, Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic | Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Mrs.
Finance and | cholces and experience in guiding and leading | Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr.
Planning management teams to make decisions in | Ritesh Sachdev and Ms,
uncertain environments, Sucheta Shah
Governance | Experience in  developing governance | Mr.  Sanjay Dutt, Mrs.
practices, serving the best interests of al | Sandhya Kudtarkar, and Ms.
stakeholders, maintaining board anc | Sucheta Shah
management accountability, building long-
term effective stakeholder engagements anc
driving corporate ethics and values.
) |
Legal ~ With expertise in compliance regulations and | Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, |
dispute resolution mechanisms Mr, Kamlesh Parekh ‘
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xiii.  detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no
other material reasans other than those provided: None

3. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific

" areas. These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by Resclutions passed through circulation
which are noted by the Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings. The
Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated to
the Board of Directors for nating.

(a) Audit Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formed its Audit Committee, composition and terms of
reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions. The Committee acts as a link
between the Management, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board.

All the Members of the Committee have the ability to read and understand financial statements
and possess relevant accounting, finance and / or audit experience.

The Company Secretary of the Company functions as the Secretary to the Audit Committee
of the Board.

The Audit Committee has met four {4) times during the year under review. The said meetings
were held on May 23, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 07, 2023, and February 05, 2023.
There was not more than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days elapsed between the 2 (two)
meetings and requisite quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least
2 (two) Independent Directors as required under Regulation 18(2)(b} of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The details of Composition and the attendance at Meeting is given herein below:

Sr. Name of Committee Designation Meeting Attendance
No. member

1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson 4 out of 4

2 Ms. Sucheta Shah Member 4 out of 4

3 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Member ~ 4outof4

Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the
Company Secretary, the Statutory Auditors, and other persons, as the Committee may
consider appropriate.
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The minutes of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the
year,

Terms of reference:

The terms of reference shall be as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read along
with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Chairperson of Audit Committee was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on July 20, 2023.

{b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formed its Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
composition and terms of reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has met ane (1) time during the year under
review. The said meeting was held on May 23, 2023. The details of Composition and the
attendance at Meeting is given herein below:

' sr. T Name of Committee member Designation Meeting
No. Attendance
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson 1outofl
2 Ms. Sucheta Shah Member 1outofl
3 Mr. Kamlash Parekh Member loutofl

A necessary quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least one
Independent Director as required under Regulation 19{2A) of the Listing Regulations. The
minutes of the meetings of the Committes are placed before and noted by the Board.

The Chairperson of NRC was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on July 20, 2023.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the NRC are to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
and do such other acts as prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Reguiation 19 read
along with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are based on various factors
which includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment
of knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence
of behaviour and judgment.

{c) Risk Management Committee ("RMC")

In accordance with Regulation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted
its Risk Management Committee, composition, and terms of reference of which are in
canformity with the said provisions. The Risk Management Cornmittee of the Company was
re-constituted w.e.f, February 05, 2024.

The Risk Management Committee has met Two (2) times during the year under review. The
said meeting was held on May 23, 2023, and November 07, 2023. The details of Compaosition
and the attendance at Meeting is given herein below:

Sr. Name of Committee member Designation Meeting

No. Attendance
1 Ms. Sucheta Shah Chairperson 2outaf 2
2 Mr. Ritesh Sachdev Member 2 out of 2
3 Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni* Member NA

*Mr. Hari Krishna was appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f, February 05, 2024
**Mr. Ankur Gulati ceased to be Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 01, 2024

A necessary quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least one
Independent Director as required under Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations. The minutes

of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the RMC are as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part D of
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security of the
Company.

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC")

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company has formed its Stakenolders’ Relationship Committee, compositian
and terms of reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions. The Committee
was re-constituted w.e.f. February 05, 2024.
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met one (1) time during the year under review.
The said meeting was held on May 23, 2023. The details of Composition and the attendance
at Meeting is given herein below:

Sr. Name of Committee member Designation Meeting

No. , Attendance
1 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh ‘ Chairman loutof 1
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member 1outof1
3 Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni* Member NA

*Mr. Hari Krishna was appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 05, 2024
*¥Mr. Ankur Gulati ceased to be Member of the Comunittee w.e.f. February 01, 2024

The Chairperson of SRC was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company
held an July 20, 2023.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the SRC are to specifically look into various aspects of interest of
shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders and do such other acts as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule
IT of the SERI Listing Regulations.

During the financial year under review, the Company had neither received any investor
complaints, nor any complaints received by the Company were pending or remained
unresolved as on March 31, 2024. Further, Ms. Arushi Singhal, Company Secretary of the
Company, has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company.

4. Remuneration of Directors

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Independent Directors {"IDs™) for attending meetings
of the Board and the Committees of the Board. The details of the same are given here under:

Name of the Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for attending Board /
' Committee Meetings held during
FY 2023-24
Ms. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar INR 4,20,000

Pesignation: Independent Director
DIN: 00021547
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh INR 4,40,000
' Designation: Independent Director |
- DIN: 00059140
' Ms. Sucheta Shah INR 4,60,000
| Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 00322403
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The Remuneration Policy of the Company which, infer alia, lays down the criteria of making
payments to non-executive directors is available on the website of Company at
https://d1nfapfinba58s.¢loudfront. net/investor-documents/June2023/Mqs27dwRz3ne30i4zF|5.pdf

None of the Mon-Executive Director and Independent Directors had any other pecuniary
relationships or transactions with the Company during the year under review, other than
sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending
meetings of the Board/Committee of the Company.

5. General Body Meetings

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Financial Date Time Venue Special
Year Resolutions
Passed

2021-22 29/09/2022 [11.30 AM. | Through Video Conferencing | None
(IST) (VC) / Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM).

The deemed venue for the 1%
AGM was E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Maryg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai —~ 400033
where  majority of the
Shareholders resided.

2022-23 20/07/2023 [2:00 P.M. Through Video Conferencing [None
(IST) (VC) [/ Other Audio Visual
Means (CAVM).

The deemed venue for the 1%
AGM was E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, |
Chinchpakli, Mumbai — 400033
where  majority of the
Shareholders resided.
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(b) Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM):

Financiall Date Time Venue Special Resolutions
Year Passed
2021-22 |23/03/2022|03:40 The venue for the EGM was | I- Approval for increase
P.M. E Block, Voltas Premises, T in authorised share
(IST) B Kadam Marg, capital of the Company |
Chinchpokli, M™Mumbai - | ii- Approval for
400033 where majority of borrowing limits of the
the Shareholders resided Company ‘
fii-  Approval for creation
| of Charges on the
assets of the Company
2022-23 (03/06/2022/10.45 The venue for the EGM was | i- Approval for Issuance
AM. E Block, Voltas Premises, T of Non-Convertible
(I1ST) B Kadam Marg, Debentures on Private
Chinchpokii, Mumbai -~ Placement Basis.
400033 where majority of
the Shareholders resided ii-  Approval for Issuance
of Compulsory
Convertible Preference
Shares on  Private
Placement Basis.
06/06/2022(3:45  [The venue for the EGM was E |i- Approval for
P.M, Block, Voltas Premises, T B Amendment in Articles
(IST) |Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, of Association of the
Mumbai - 400033 where Company
majority of the Shareholders
resided
07/07/2022/1:00 The venue for the EGM was i Approval for Issuance
P.M, E Block, Voltas Premises, T. of Securities to CPP
(IST) B Kadam Marg, Investment Board
| Chinchpokli, Mumbai - Private Holdings (4)
400033 where majority of Inc. on Private
the Shareholders resided Placement Basis
08/07/202210:15 | Through Video - Approval for
A.M. Conferencing or  Audio Appointment of Ankur
{IST) | Visual Means Gulati as Director,
5 | Liable to retire by
| The deemed venue for the : rotation
EGM _was E Block, Voltas | i Approval for Adoption
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, of Restated Articles of
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Chinchpokli,
400033 where majority of
the Shareholders resided

Mumbai - |

Association of  the

Company

21/03/2023[11:00
AM.
(1sT)

Through Video
Conferencing or  Audio
Visual Means

The deemed venue for the
EGM was E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpekli, Mumbai -
400033 where majority of
the Shareholders resided

Appointment  of Mrs.
Sandhya Kudtarkar as
an Independent
Woman Director
Appointment  of M.
Kamlesh Parekh as an
Independent Director
Appointment  of Ms.
Sucheta Shah as an

The deemed venue for the
EGM was E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 where majority of
the Sharehaolders resided

Independent  Woman
Director
2023-24 |07/09/202312:30 | Through Video | i-  Approval for
P.M. Conferencing or  Audio borrowing limits of the
(IST) Visual Means Company

Approval for creation
of Charges on the
assets of the Company

2023-24

27/09/2023111:00
AM.

(I1ST)

|

Through Video
‘Conferencing  or  Audio
Visual Means

‘The deemed venue for the

EGM was E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 where majority of
the Shareholders resided

Approval for alteration
of Articles of
Association of the
Company

Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot — details of voting

pattern — None,

Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise — Not applicable.
Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot -

None.

Procedure for postal ballot — Not applicable,
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6. Means of Communication

The ‘Investor Relations’ section on the Company’s website (www.tatarealty.in) keeps the
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely
information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsible
for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can alsc send in their
queries/complaints at the designated email address at trilsec@tatarealfy.in. Financial Results
are normally published in free press journal newspaper. During the year under review, there
were no presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

Quarterly financial results are announced within 45 (forty-five) days from the end of the
quarter and annual audited results are announced within 60 (sixty) days from the end of the
financial year, as per Regulations 52 of the Listing Regulations and are published in the
newspapers in accordance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations.

7. General shareholder information

(a) Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended March 31, 2024

Day & Date  : Tuesday, September 10, 2024
Time 1 2:00 P.M. (IST)
Venue 1 Through Video Conferencing/ Audio Visual Means at E Block, Voltas

Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 (for purpose
of recording location) where majarity of the Shareholders resides.

{(b) Financial Year: April 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024
{c) Dividend Payment: Nil
{(d) Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees:

As on March 31, 2024, only Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on
following platform: '

Name and Address of the | Type of Securities Listed | Scrip / Stock Code
Stock Exchange

BSE Limited Non-Convertible Debentures | 974013/ 974042
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Listing Fees as applicable for FY 2023-24 were paid by the Company.
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{e) Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year: Not
Applicable*

() Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex,
CRISIL Index etc.: Not Applicable*

{(g9) In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall
explain the reason thereof: Not Applicable

(h) Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given
below:

Registrar and Transfer Agents

For Equity Shares & Non — Convertible Debentures

KFIN Technologies Limited

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad — 500 032

Phone: 040-67162222, Fax: 040-23001153

Contact person: Mr. Gopala Krishna K V

e-mail: gopalakrishna.kvs@kfintech.com

{i) Share Transfer System:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024, and
are freely transferable,

(i} Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2024:

' s. Name of the shareholder | Number of
| No | shares held
[1 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 3,82,42,020
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited jointly with Mr. Ritesh ' 1
Kamdar .
3 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited jointly with Mr. Vishal Raja 17
4 | Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Mr. Vikrant 1
Vaidya
5 | Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Mr. Sunil Dhagat 1
6 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Ms. Mrunal Amogh 1
Mahajan
7 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Ms. Rashmi Jain 1
8 | CPP Investment Board Private Holdings {(4) Inc 3,67,42,331
TOTAL 7,49,84,357
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(k) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024. Under

the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN™) allotted to

the Company’s equity shares is INEOKZX01018.

(I) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity:

Not Applicable

(m) Commeoedity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

Not Applicable

{n} Plant locations:

Not Applicable

(o) Address for correspondence:

Infopark Properties Limited

E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg,

Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

(pr) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions
thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such
entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal:

Details pertaining to Credit Ratings obtained by the Company are Included in the Directors’
Repaort,

(q) Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund:

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

* The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence certain
aetails are not applicable to the Company.
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8. Other Disclosures:

a. disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interests of listed entity at large:

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that have a
conflict with the interest of the Company.

b. details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on
the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority,
on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years: None

c. details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy, and
affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, No person has
been denied access to the Chairman of the audit committee as detailed in the Whistle Blower
Policy. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company and available on
https://d1nfapfinhg58s,cloudfront. net/investor-documents/April2024/5BIduliPPwMalVMREMrz, pdf

d. details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements;

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to
the Company with effect from June 29, 2022 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31,
2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulatiens, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17,
2024, The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to compty with said applicable
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025.

e. web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed;

Following is the web link, where policy for determining ‘material” subsidiaries is disclosed at
https://d1nfgpfinbg58s.cloudfront. net/investor-documents/November2022/Aac8NévueQcT GmTrlmZx. pdf

f. web link where policy on dealing with related paity transactions is disclosed;

Following is the web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed
https://d1nfgpfinbg58s.cloudfrent. net/investar-documents/April2023/2gIUh1Biirse WSX0021 .pdf

g- disclosure of commaodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:

Not Applicable
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h. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A):

Not Applicable

i. a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on
the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority:

The Company has obtained certificate from M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is reproduced
at the end of this report and marked as Annexure III.

j. where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of
the board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the
same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof: None

k. total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network

firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below:

(INR in lakh)
Particulars Amount Amount
|
Audit Fees 42.00 l
Tax Audit Fees 0.00
Certification and other services : 10.46
Total 52,46

I. disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{ Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
¢. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil
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m. disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the
nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name
and amount”: Nil

n. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place
of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory
auditors of such subsidiaries: Not Applicable

9. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-
paras (2) to (10) ahove, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The pravisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to
the Company with effect from June 29, 2022, on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31,
2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) {Fifth Amendment} Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) {(Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17,
2024. The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025.

10.The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the
discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been
adopted:

i. The Chairman of the Company is a Non-Executive Director, and he is not related to the
Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer as per the definition of the term
“relative” defined under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has a separate post
for Chairperson and Chief Executive officer of the Company.

if. The Company is in the regime of unmadified opinions on financial statements.

iif. The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee of the
Company on certain matters of the Company.

11.The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of
SEBI Listing Regulations shall be made in the section on corporate governance
of the annual report.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to
the Company with effect from June 29, 2022, on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31,
2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17,
2024. The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025,




INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED

The Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on
Corparate Governance submifted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023, December 31,
2023, and March 31, 2024.

12.Declaration signed by the Director stating that the members of hoard of
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
code of conduct of board of directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees, including the Directors. The
Code is available on the Campany’s website (www.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the
respective Codes. A declaration signed by the Director to this effect is reproduced at the end
of this report and marked as "Annexure I”.

13.Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company
secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall
be annexed with the directors’ report.

The Company has obtained a compliance certificate from the M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries, on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end
of this report and marked as “Annexure II”.

14.Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense
account: Not Applicable

15.Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities: Not Applicable
By order of the Board of Directors

For Infopark Properties Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Chairman
DIN: 05251670

Date: July 30, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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“Annexure I”

Declaration by the Director on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1, Sanjay Dutt, Director of the Company hereby declare that all the members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct,
as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year -2023- 24.

For Infopark Properties Limited

=
Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 30, 2024
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Annexure I1

Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road
(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank)
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256
4553 0257 / 4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com

secretarial@csdhanapal.com

website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates LLP

Practising Company Secretaries
LLPIN ACB - 0368

Designated Partners : (Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008)

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., EC.§
N. Ramanathan, B.Com., EC.S
Smita Chirimar, M.Com., EC.S, DCG(ICSI)

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE MEMBERS OF
INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
FOR THE FY ENDED 31.03.2024

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. INFOPARK
PROPERTIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 of Chapter IV and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and Para C & D of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
the representations made by the Directors and Management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 of Chapter
IV and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C & D of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) for the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Chennai FOR S DHANAPAL & QWLLP
Date: 03.06.2024 A Firm of Practising; Comp%y S_@cre@nes
W Ya0m0

H/RY

(5 ) N RAMANATHAN
(= (oom ;'“ i B PARTNER
\© MEMBERSHIP NO :F6665

C.P.NO.: 11084
UDIN: F006665F000514469
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Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road
(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank)
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256
4553 0257 / 4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com

secretarial@csdhanapal.com
website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal &~ Associates LLP

Designated Partners :

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., EC.S

N. Ramanathan, B.Com., EC.S

Smita Chirimar, M.Com., EC.S, DCG(ICSI)

Practising Company Secretaries

LLPIN ACB - 0368
(Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008)

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

In pursuance to sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, in respect of M/s. INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED (CIN:
U70109TN2021PLC147646), (hereinafter referred to as “Company”), we hereby
certify that:

On the basis of the written representations / declarations received from Directors of
the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company as on
March 31, 2024, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company and its Officers, none of the Directors on the Board of the above said
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Director of the Company by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board
is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these based on our verification. This Certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP
(Practicing Company Secretaries)

~ %MW
AMANATHAN-NACHIAPPAN
(Designated Partner)
. Membership No.F6665
Place: Chennai COP No.11084
Date : 03.06.2024 UDIN: F0O06665F000514458
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14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing
B S R & CO . L L P Nesco IT Park 4, Nesca Center

Western Express Highway
Chartered Accountants Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400 063, India

Telephene: +91 {22) 6257 1000
Fax: +91 (22) 8257 1010

[ndependent Auditor's Repart

To the Members of Infopark Properties Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Infopark Properties Limited {the “Company”) which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and nofes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information. :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audif of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Caode of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate tc provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn thereen, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of Investment Property {Including investment property under construction)

See Note 4 {a) and (b) to financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The carrying amount of the investment property | Our audit procedures included:
{including investment  property  under

* Evaluated and tested the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
Company's key internal controls in relation to
impairment assessment of investment property
{including investment property under
construction).

construction) is Rs, 1,78,663.11 [akhs as at
March 31, 2024.

The Company assesses at each reporting date,
whether there is any indication that investment
property (including investment property under |

Repistered Ofice;

B S R & Co. (a partnership fimn with Registration No, BA61223) converted into B SR & Co. LLP (a 14ih Floor, Cenlral B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limited Liability Parinership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181} with effect frem Oclober 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (Easl), Mumbal - 400053
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

construction) may be impaired. In such case,
the Company estimates the recoverable
amount and compares it to the carrying value.

The determination of the recoverable value
involves significant judgements, assumptions
and estimates.

Considering  the  amounts,  significant
judgements, assumptions and estimates
involved, this is considered as a key audit
matter.

Infopark Properties Limited

Assessed management’'s determination of
recoverable amount as higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Evaluated the objectivity and competence of the
Company appointed external independent
valuer involved in determination of fair value.

We assessed the identification of relevant cash
generating unit (CGU) to which such investment
preperty (including investment property under
construction) are allocated.

Tested the assumptions such as such as market
rent levels, toll revenues, expenditure to be
incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing market
yields, market transactions and cash flows,
which included comparing these results with
externally derived data as well as our own
assessments based on our knowledge of the
client and the industry.

Obtained understanding of the forecasted cash
flows based on our knowledge of the Company
and the markets in which they operate.

Performed our own sensitivity analysis.
Assessed the effect of possible reductions in
market rent levels, conventional centre
revenues, expenditure to be incurred, growth
rates and forecasted cash flows and their impact
on the fair values.

Assessed the comparability of the forecasts with
historical information.

Involved our valuation specialists for evaluating
the key assumptions used in valuation. Tested
arithmetic accuracy of the cash flow models
prepared by the Company.

Assessed Company’s comparison of the
recoverable amount to the carrying value of the
investment property ({including invesiment
preperty under construction) and its festing
of impairment provision.

Performed analytical precedures by evaluating
inputs, assumptions and fair values on a year-
on-year basis and obtained explanation for the
variations.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, including
disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and
sensitivities as per requirements of relevant Ind
AS,

Page 2 of 13 ’?

Page 63 of 108



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Infopark Properties Limited

Assessment of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

. See Note 19 to financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has | Our audit procedures included:
recognized deferred tax assets of Rs. 3,343.38
lakhs on deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unabsorbed
depreciation.

Under Ind AS, the Company is required to
reassess recognition of deferred tax asset at | «  Obtaining the approved business plans,
each reporting date. The Company has projected profitability statements for the existing
deferred tax assets in respect of brought ongoing projects.

forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and
other temporary differences, as set out in note
19 to the financial statements.

The Company's deferred tax assets in respect
of brought forward business losses and
unabsorbed depreciation are based on the
projected profitability. This is determined on the
basis of approved business plans
demonstrating availability of sufficient taxable
income to utilise such brought forward

= Evaluating the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of controls over quarterly
assessment of deferred tax balances and
underlying data.

* Evaluating the projections of future taxable
profits. Tested the assumptions such as such as
market rent levels, hotel revenues, expenditure
to be incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing
market yields, market transactions and cash
flows, including comparison of these results with
externally derived data as well as our own
assessments based on our knowledge of the
client and the industry.

business loss. * Assessing the recoverability of deferred tax |
Considering this involves estimation and assets by evaluating profitahility, Company's
judgment in determining reasonable certainty forecasts and fiscal developments.

of sufficient future faxable income, based on ) .

the financial projections, being available, which | ©  Evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax
will result in recoverability of the recognized assets by evaluating profitability, Company’s
deferred tax assets, we have identified forecasts and fiscal developments.

recognition and measurement of deferred tax

assets as a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's director's report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s repert thereon. The Company's director's report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Cur opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other infermation and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Whenh we read the directar's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Page 3 of 13 e
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

Infopark Properties Limited

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsibie for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainfain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive tc those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmissicns, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing cur opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statementis in place and the operating effectiveness of such coentrols.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obfained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future evenis
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and confent of the financial statements, including the
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Infopark Properties Limited

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current peried and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thai a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremants

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Gevernment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thcse books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11{(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditcrs)
Rules, 2014,

¢. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. Inouropinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 to 15
April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a direcior in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Secticn 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy cf the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectivenass of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B",

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in cur opinion and to the best of our information and
accarding to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigaticns which would impact its financial position.
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
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Infopark Properties Limited

were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounis which were required io be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {"Intermediaries™,
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(il The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties {*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the tike on behalf
of the Ulfimate Beneficiaries.

{iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appreopriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither dectared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its bocks of account, which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recerded in the respective software:

*  The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level for
accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of account to log any direct data
changes. '

+  The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application layer
for certain fields/tables of the accounting software used for maintaining the bocks of accounts
for revenue from property rental, treasury, general ledger and investment property.

« In the absence of independent auditor's report in relation to controls at service organisation
for accounting software used for maintaining its books of account relating to payroll process,
which is operated by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment
whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the
year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit frail
feature being tampered with.

7
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneraticn to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/AV-100022

N

Farhad Bamiji

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Infopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Investment
Property under construction and Right of Use (ROU) Asset.

{B) The Company has maintained proper recoerds showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its property, plant and equipment, investment property and ROU Asset by which all property,
plant and equipment, investment property and ROU Asset are verified every year. [n
accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment, investment property and
ROU asset were verified during the year. [n our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
property where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreement is duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or investment property {including Right of Use assetls) during the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and cn the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i (@)  The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In cur apinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. However, the Company is not required to file quarterly returns or
statements with such banks or financial institutions.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granfed any leans or advances in the nature of [oans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(jii}(a) to 3{ifi)(f} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

{iv) According to the information and explanations given tc us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any depesits or amounts which are deemed to be depasits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Infopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vil) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statufory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, iIncome-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of Income Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable,

(b} According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

{viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any fransactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
korrowing or in the payment of interest thereon fo any lender.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ocur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hotd any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {(as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) and
3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

(x){(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), Accordingly, clause 3(x}(a} of the Crder Is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi){a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Infopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{b) According to the information and explanations given {c us, no report under sub-secticn (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

{xii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required tc be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)a} of the Order is not applicable.

{b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} has more than one CIC
as part of the Group. The Group has five CIC's which are registered with the Reserve Bank of
India and two CIC's which are nof required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

{xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory audiors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xix) We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2024, Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2024
by Rs. 2,08,005.15 lakhs.

As explained in the aforesaid note, the Company will raise funds through issuance of NCDs /
term loans / any other financial instrument etc. Accordingly, there will be adequate cash balance
to meet its debt and liabilities upto 31 March 2025 as and when they fall due for payment in the
normal course of business.

On the basis of the above and according fo the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing af the date

Page 10 of 13

Page 71 of 108

7



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Infopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

(x¢) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3{xx){a} and 3{xx){b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

A

RS

Farhad Bamiji

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000
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Report on the internal financial contrels with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements of Infopark Properties
Limited ("the Company”} as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, fo the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included cbfaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend con the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

provide reasenable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to /7
e
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Infopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generafly accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the mainfenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3}
provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisiticn, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that cculd have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrels, material misstatements
due io error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

N

Farhad Bamji

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{Currancy: Indian rupees in lakhs}

As at
" As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
_|Restated)
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
{Al Property, plant and equipment EXN] 3336 49.76
(B} Investment property 4fi) 178,252.72 188,719.97
{C] Investment property under construction afji} 365.39 -
(D} Intangible assets 3 - -
{E} Right-of-use assat 5 11859318 120,420.10
[F} financial assets
(i} Invastments 6 251,65 25165
(i) Cther financial assets 7 573.54 246.18
{G) Non-currant tax assets(Nat) a9 1,375.26 1,079.72
{H) Deferred tax assats (net) 19 3,340.70 -
{I} Other non current assets a 10,277.71 7,075.25
Total Non-current assets 313,477.51 317,842.63
Current pssets
{i} Inventories w0 181.43 108.43
{K] Financfal assets
(i} Investments 6 0.01 a0
(ii} Trade receivables 11 2,457.39 2,053.25
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 30,073.51 1,635.54
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 13 - 15,780.00
{L} Other current assets a 4,054.29 1,521.77
Tatal current assets 36,767.03 21,099.04
Total assets 350,244.54 338,941.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(A) Equity share capital 14 7.458.44 7498.44
(B) Crher equity 15 {257,967.18) (245,027.55)
Total Equity {250,468.74) {237,529.11)
Liabilities
(€] Financial liabilities
{a) Borrowings kL 34285939 542,011.83
{b} Other finandcial liabilities 17 B.854.26 12,321.33
(D) Provisions 18 0.64 333
(€} Deferred tax Kabilities (net) 19 - 3,278.69
{F} Other non-current liabilities 22 4,135.82 2,382.91
Total non-current Liahilities 35585111 559,998.09
Current liahifities
(6} Financial liabilities
{a) Borrowings 16 231,887.73 6,049.57
{b} Trade payables 21
{i} Tatal cutstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 110.01 13.53
{ii} Tota uulstan.ding dues of creditors other than micro 3,515.99 2,865.34
and Smalt enterprises
iz } Other Financial liabilities 17 7441.28 6,044.17
{H} Other current liabllities 22 1,903.22 1,498.77
(1} Provisions 18 3.94 131
Total Current Liabilities 244,862.17 16,472.69
Total Liabilities 600,713.28 576.470.78
Total equity and liabilities 350,244.54 338,041.67

The accornpanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

ForB5R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants
{Firm's Registration Mo. 101248W/W-100022}

AR

Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
of Infopark Preperties Umited
CIN: UTOL08TN2O21PLC147646

Sanjay Dutt
Directar
DOIN: 05251670

V. Vijay Kumar

\ / \H,-Bcé_} icuq%cq

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 april 2024

Pagel

Y
Ritesh Sa chd‘&v

Director
DIN: 08099511

o
3
Arushi Singhal

Company Secretary
Membership Mo.A54516
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

) Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
| Revenue from operations 23 59,462.85 47,449.97
I Otherincome 24 1,897.50 1,125.24
1l Total income {I+11} 61,360.35 48,575.21
IV EXPENSES
Food and Beverages consumed 25 440.93 294.85
Employee bensfit expense 26 85.96 178.44
Finance costs 27 49,098.71 40,942.80
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 16,386.40 17,140.01
Other expenses 29 14,907.37 15,239.09
Total expenses 80,919.37 73,795.20
V (Loss) before tax {llI-1V) {19,559.02) {25,219.99)
VI Tax expense
Current Tax - .
Deferred Tax 19 {6,619.40} (8,105.22)
Total Tax Expense (6,619.40) (8,105.22)
VI {Loss) for the year {V-V]) (12,939.62) (17,114.77)
VIl Other comprehensive income
4 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement Gain/(loss) of the defined benefit obligaticns 30 {0.02) 2.70
Income-tax relating to items that witl not be reclassified to profit or 0.0 (0.68)
loss 19
5 Iltams that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income far the year {0.01) 2.02
1X Total comprehensive (loss) for the year fV11+VIl) (12,939.64) {17,112.75)
Earnings per equity share
Basic (INR) 39 (17.26) (30.45)
Diluted (INR} 39 (17.25) (30.45)

The accompanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report cf 2ven date.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No, 101248W/W-100022)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Infopark Properties Limited
CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646

I _

Farhad Bamiji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

\f‘\!':)cd lCumeas

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

Ritash Sachdev
Director
DIN: 08099511

Arushi Singhal
Company Secretary
Membership No.A54516

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DiN: 05251670

V.Vijay Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
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INFOPARK PRCPERTIES LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

A

Equity share capital
X As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars {Restated)
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid
Equity shares of INR 10 each
Opening Balance 74,984,350 7,498.44 10,000 1.00
Changes in eguity share capital during the year - - 74,974,350 7,497.44
Closing Balance 74,984,350 7,498.44 74,984,350 7.498.44

Other equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Retained earnings | Securities Premium

Common control
acquisition deficit

Defined Benefit
plan adjustment

Total

As at 1 April 2022 {Refer Note-45) {58,375.51) 42,726.02 (258,299.18} {6.38) {273,955.05)
On issue of equity shares during the year - 52,626.75 - - 52,626.75
Restatement of Deferred tax{Refer Note-45) (6,586.50) - - - (6,586.50)
[Loss) for the year (17,114.77) - - - (17,124.77)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - 2.02 2.02
As at 31 March 2023 (82,076.78) 95,352.77 {258,259.18) (4.36) (245,027.55)
(Loss} for the year [12,939.62] - - - (12,939.62)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - {0.01) [C.01)
As at 31 March 2024 195,016.40) 95,352.77 {258,299.18) {4.37} {257,967.18}

The accompanying notes t-46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As pac our report of even date.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[Firm'’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022)

AR

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Infopark Properties Limited
CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646

Sanjay Dutt
Director
DIN: 05251670

\f \fja?j Vwonesa

V.Vijay Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024
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Arushi 5inghal
Company Secretary
Membership No.AS4516
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Year ended
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 {Restated)
Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss} befere tax {15,559.02) (25,219.95)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 16,386.40 17,140.01
Interest income (1,737.72) (330.40)
Finance costs 47,702.35 39,420.89
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 1,396.36 1,505.46
Unearned rent on security deposit from tenant (1,438.60) {1,415.41)
Income recognised as per Ind AS 116 (3.394.13) 5,463.82
Provision for Employee benefits 0.29 0.50
Amortisation of brokerage expenses 684.97 719.43
Operating Profit before working capital changes 40,050.90 36,734.72
Adjustments for changes in working capital
{Increase) in Trade receivables (404,10} {263.53)
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (332.38) 259.48
{Increase) in Inventories {73.00) [90.53)
{Increase) in Other assets {3,651.21) {614.63)
Decrease in other current assets 0.14 2.16
{Decrease} In Trade Payables and other financial Hiabilities {3,186.30) (3,467.38)
Increasa/{Decrease) in other current liabilities 2,233.80 {606.44)
Increase/{Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities 1,363.36 (1,188.59}
{Decrease) in Provisions [0.35) {79.76)
Cash flows generated frem cperating activities 36,000.68 30,685.49
Tax refund during the year [net} 106.82 571.52
Net Cash flows generated from Operating activities 36,107.50 31,257.01
Cash flow from investing activities
{4,170.23} (3,192.93)
Payment for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Investments - (388,259.17)
Sate of Current Investment({Net) - 4.55
Investment in fixed deposits under lien 15,780.00 {13,838.00)
Interest received 1,737.72 880.40
Net ¢ash flows generated from/{used in) Investing Activities 13,347.49 (404,495.15)
Cash flows fram financing actlvities
Issue of Shares incuding share premium - 60,124.18
Repayment of Long term borrowings (5,761.42) {4,953.95)
Proceeds fraom inter corporate deposit 2,100.00 100.00
Repayment of intercorporate deposit {225,000 -
Praceeds from Non-covertible debentures - 329,000.00
Proceeds from Qvardraft 1,280.75 -
Interest paid [18,410.95) {14,854.79)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing Activities (21,016.52) 369,415.44
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash egulvalents 28,438.37 (3,822.70}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,635.54 5,458.24
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note- 12) 30,073.91 1,635.54
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand 2.59 037
Balance with banks
in current accounts 454.50 1,214.26
in deposit accounts with lass than ar equal to 3 manihs original maturity 29,616,82 420.51
Total 30,073.91 1,635.54
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currancy: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-Cash Changes
Particulars 1 April 2023 | Financing Cash Flows| {Accruals and Other 31 March 2024
Adjustments)
Long Term Borrowings 547,816.15 (5,761.42) 29,194.11 571,248.84
Short Term Borrowings 245.25 3,155.75 97.28 3,498.28
Total 548,061.40 2,605.67) 29,291.39 574,747.12
Non-Cash Changes
Particulars 1April 2022 | Financing Cash Flows| [Accruals and Other 31 March 2023
Adjustments)
tong Term Borrowings 197,809.38 324,046 05 25,960.72 547,816.15
Short Term Borrawings 2,625.22 1C0.00 [2,479.97) 245,25
Total 200,434.60 324,146.05 23,480.75 548,061.40
Notes:

The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS 7} on Statement of Cash Flows
prescribed in Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, natified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The accompanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per aur report of aven date,

ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022)

NWy™

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of infopark Properties Limited
CIN: U70109TN2021P1.C147646

— mm———

Sanjay Dutt
Director
OIN: 05251670

Vgl

V.\Vijay Kumar
Chief Flnancial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Notas to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

1 Background of the Company
Infopark Properties Limited (“the Company’] was incorporated on 2 November 2021, The Company is engaged in the business of promoting and developing sector
specific Special Economic Zane (SEZ} for Information Technology at Taramani, Chennai. In addition, pursuant Lo the requirements of the said agreement, the
Company also operates an International Convention Centre with Serviced apartments, primarily to cater to the occupants of the said $£2. The Company is a limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registerad office at Chennai, Tamil nadu, India.

2 Materjal Accounting Policies

i) Basis of Preparation

[a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as per the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act’} and ather relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements weie authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Birectors on 25 April 2024,

{b) Gaing concern
The Company has incurred net loss of INR 12,939.62 fakhs during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: net loss of INR 17,114.77 lakhs) and has a negative
net worth of INR 250,468.74 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 INR 237,529.11 Iakhs). As at 31 March 2024, the Company has a net current fiability position
of INR 208,095.14 lakhs {31 March 2023 net current assets of INR 4,626.35 lakhs) where the current liabilities of INR 244,862.17 lakhs exceed the current assets of
INR 36,767.03 fakhs.
Based on scheduled repayment of borrowings, INR 231,887.73 lakhs {included in the current liabilittes figure of INR 244,862.17 Lakhs above) is due far repayment
within 12 months {including INR 221,209.45 lakhs due in June 2024) from the approval of these standalone finandial staternents. The Company’s ability to meerits
obligations falling due in next 12 months depends ¢n additional fund raising from the market in the form of Non-convertible Debenturas (NCDs), term loans, Other
Instrument and continued financial support from the joint venturars. The management is actively In discussion with banks and financial institutions to refinance the
loan. On this basts, the management is of the view that there will be adequate cash balance to meet its debt and liabilities as and when they fall due for payment in
the normal course of business.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors have prepared these standalene audited financial statements on a going concern basis and therefare, the assets and liabilities are
recorded on the basis that the Company will be able to use or realize its assets at least at the recorded amounts and discharge its Jiabilities in the usual course of
business.

{c}  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees {INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in
Indian rupees (INR) and ali amounts have bean rounded-off to the nzarest lakhs, except far share datz and as otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers
presanted throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentage may net pregisely reflect the abselute figures.

{d} Basis of measurement
These financial statements have bean prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and llabilities Fair value
Nat deftined benefit liablity Present value of defined benefit obligatlons

{e} Use of estimates and judpernents

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expanses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and undarlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons te accounting estimates are recagnisad prospectively.
Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts racognised in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2024 is
included in the following notes:

MNotes 3 to 5 - impairment test of non-financial assats: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts

Note 3 1o 5—useful Mife of Property, plant and equipment and other intangibles assets;

Note 18 and 34— recognition and measurement of provisions and contingancies: key assumptions abeut the likelihood 2nd magnitude of an cutflow of resources;
Note 19 ~ recognition of deferred tax assels: availability of future taxable profit against which tax Josses carried forward can be used;

Note 30 - measuremant of defined benefit cbligaticns: key actuarial assumptions

Note 32 - impairment of Financial assets

Note 31 - Financial lisbilities valued at fair value

i) Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The
Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values whereby the valuation is obtained from an external independent
vaiuer which is then reviewed by the Finance team for the underlying assumptions used in the valuation,

The Finance team regularly reviews significant unobsarvable inputs and valuation adjustments. ¥ third party information, such as braker quotes or pricing services, is
used by the valuer to measure fair values, then they assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the cenclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, inciuding the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be ¢lassifled.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identigal assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Leve! 1 that are observabie for the asset or llability, aither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly [i.e. derived from
prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on chservable market data {unobservable inputs)
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‘When measuring the fair vatue of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as passible. If the inputs used to measurz the fair value of
an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categarized in its entirety in the same level of the falr
value hlerarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfars have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on tha lowest level input that is significani te the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reperting period.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Further information abeut the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included i the following notes:
- Note 4 - Investment property; and
- Note 31 — Fair value hierarchy;

{g}  Foreign currency transactions

Foraign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the trenslation of manetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currendies al year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-menetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valve was determined.
Translation differencas on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. The gain or lass arising en translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss an the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are alsc recognised in CCl or proflt or loss, respectively),

{h}  Current / Nen Current Classification

Tha Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

- Tt expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal eperating cycle;

- It holds the asset primarily far the purpose of trading;

- It expects to realise the asset within twefve manihs after the reporting period; or

- the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchangad or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
pericd.

All ather assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when —

- it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell ar consume i, in its normal operating cycle;

- it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

- the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried; or

- it does nat have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the raperting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue ef equity instruments de not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as nen-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company’s normal aperating
cycle Is bwelve months.

{i) Financial instruments

A finandial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to & financial asset of one entity and a financial liability oc equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments also include darivative contracts such as fareign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swags and currency options; and embedded
derivatives in the hest contract. Financial instruments i.e. Financial Assets and Financial Uabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments, Trada receivables and debt securitias issued are inntially recognised when they are originated. All ather financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company bacomes a party to the contraciual provisiens of the instrument.A financial asset {unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing component) or finandial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction Costs
that are directly aitributable to its acquisition ¢rissue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is ally measured at the transaction price.

{ir Financial assets
Subsequant Measurement
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost ysing effective interest method except for financial assets carried at fair value through
Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or fair value through cther comprehensive income [FVOCH. on the basis of its businass model fer managing the financlal assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Initial recognition and measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial asseis and financial liabilities are initially recagnised
when the Company becemes a party to the contractuai pravisions of the Instrument.

A financlal asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing compenent] or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an
item not a1 FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable o its acquisition or issue, A trade receivable witheut z significant financing companent is infilally
measured at the transaction price.

Page 7

Page 81 of 108



INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

0]

Debt instruments

A ‘dabt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

8} The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assats for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After inittal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking inte account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an aquity investment that is not held for trading, the Campany has an irrevacable option of designating certain equity instruments as FYOC).
Option of designating instrumenis as FYOCI is done on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification made on initial recognition Is irrevocable. If the
Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FYOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument are recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income (SOCI). Amounts from SOCI are not subsequently transferred te profit and loss, even on sale of investment.

De-recognition

A Enancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel er part of 3 Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Company™s balance sheet) when:

The rights e receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash ficws from the asset or has assemed an obligation to pay the received cash Aows in full without material delay
te a third party under a2 ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the
Camgany has neither transferred nor retained substantislly zll the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evalvates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues ta recognise the transferred asset 10 the extent of tha Company’s continuing involvament, In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligatians that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvameant that takes the form of 2 guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applles expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

2)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., leans, debt securities, deposits, 2nd bank balance

b} Lease receivables

¢} Trade receivables

The Campany folfows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment |oss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

All lease receivables resulting from transactions.

The spplication of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impzirment lass allowance based on
lifetime ECLs 3t each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
cradit risk since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has
ncreased significantly, Kfetime £CLIs used. If, in a subsaquent period, credit quality of the instrument impraves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recagnising impairment loss allowance based on 12-menth ECL

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently maasured at amertised cost, except for financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilitias, including derivatives that are habilities, are subsequently measured at fair value,

Inltial recognition and measurement

Financial llabilities are cfassified, at initial recognition, as financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss , loans held at amortised cost or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedgs, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initialty 2t fair value and, in the case of amartised costs, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financtal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL}

& financial [Tability is classified as at FVTPL if it Is classified as held-far-trading, it 15 a derivative or it is designated as such on initia! recognition. Financial liahilities are
classified as held for 1rading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This tategory aiso includes derivative financial instruments entered
inte: by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or lasses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit er loss.

Financial iabiities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognitian, and only if the criteria In Ind-
AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. Thesa gains/loss zre
not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 2quity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statament of profit er less. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through grofit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After Initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrewings are subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest rate {FIR) method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss whan the liabilities are derecognized. Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount er premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an ntegral part of the EIR. The EIR amorisation is included as finance costs in the statemant of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial lisbility is derecopnised when the obligation under the liability is discharged er cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantizily different terms, ar the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is
treated as the derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carmying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intenticon to settla an a net basis or realise the assat and settle the habibity simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and musi be enforceable in the normal course ¢f business and in the event ¢f default, insolvency er bankrupicy of the Company or the
counterparty.
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{k} Property, plant and equipment
{i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, and includes capitalised horrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprise of its purchase price, including iImport duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, directly atiributable cost of bringing the itemn to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cests of dismantling and remaving
the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if any.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant 2nd equipment have different useful lives, then they are accountad for as separate items (major components) of
praperty, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on dispasal of an item of property, plant and eguipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss,
{ii} Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benaefits associated with the expendlture will flow to the Company.
{it) Depreciation
Depreciation is caleulated on cost of items of preperty, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-

Iine methad, and is generally recognised in the siatement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated aver the shorter of tha lease term
and their useful lives unless it js reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives {in years) for the currant and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of useful life
Plant and machinery 10 years™
Electrical fittings 10 years
Office equipment 1- 10 years™
Computers and Servers 3 -G years*
Furniture and fixtures 5- 8 years*®
Motar vehicles 5 yesrs*

* For these class of assets, based on technical evaluaticn and internal assessment of usage pattern, the management believas that the useful life as adopted best
represents the pariod over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are lower from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule If of the Companies Act, 2013

Depraciation method, useful lives and residuzl values are reviewed st each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Tangible assets indivigually costing tess
than or equal ta INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {up to} the date on which asset is ready for use [disposed of).

() Other Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment

losses.

{ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow ta the Company.

{i#4) Amartisation
Amertisation is caiculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method, and is included in depreciation and amonrtisaticn in statement of profit and less. Intangible assets comprise of softwarce purchased which are amortised over
a perjod of 5 years.

(m){i) Investment property and Right to use an asset
Praperty that is held ta earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, and that is net occupied by the Company,
is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at rost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.The
International Convention Centre constructed by the Company is considered to be a part of invesiment property because it is intended to cater primarily to the
occupants of the commercial properties that are lzased by the Company to third parties and therefore an integral part of such commercial proparties

Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected

from its disposal. Any gain of loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount
of the item} is recognised in profit or loss. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced pari is derecognised.,

The estimate useful lives {in years) are as follows:

Management
Asset estimate of useful
life
Buildings 25 years*
Plant and machinery 10 years?
Electrical fittings 10 years
Office equipment 10 years®
Leasehaold Land 99 years

* Far this class of assets, based on technical evaluation and internal assessment of usage pattern, the management believes that the useful life as adoptad best
represents the period over which the management expects 1o use these asseis. Rence, the useful lives for thase assets are lower from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schadule Il of the Compenies Act, 2013

Investment property is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn fram use and ne future economic benefit is expecied
from its disposal, Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property {calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount
of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

The Fair Values of Investment property is disclosed in Mote 4, Such Fair Values are determined after considering valuation by an independent valuer who holds 2
recognized and relevant professional qualification and experience in respect of the investment property being valued.

(ii} Subsegquent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic banefils associated with the expenditure will
flow 1o the Company ang the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
(iii} Transition to Ind AS
The cost of investment property at 1 April 2016, the company’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference te #s carrying value recognised as per
U % the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transitfon to Ind AS.
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{n}
i)

(i)

Investment property under construction

Property that is being censtructed for future use as Investment property is accounted for as investment property under construction until construction or
development is complete. Direct expenses Fke site labour cost, material used in project construction, project management consultancy, costs for maving the plant
and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like salary costs, insurance, design and technical assistance, borrowing
costs and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project,

An ftern of investment property is derecognised upon disposal er when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Frofits and losses on disposals of
items of investment properiy are determined by comparing the proceeds from their disposals with their respective carrying amounts, and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Right to use an asset

The cost of the leasehold land is recognised at the upfront premium which the Company had paid to the land owner at the inception of the Jease commencemeant,
plus any incidental costs and the same is amertised using the straight-line method over the lease term.

With effect from 01 April 2019, the Company has applied IND AS 116 end therefore reclassified leaseheld land from Investment property to Right to use an asset.
The right to use an asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. The right to use an asset is amortised using the
straight-hine method from the commencament date over the shorier of leasa term or useful fife of right, Lo use an asset. The astimated useful lives of right to use an
asset are determined on the basis of lease term. Right 10 use an asset are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrving amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment loss, If any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment

Impalrment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allewances for axpected credit losses on:
- financfal assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial asseis measured at FVOCH

At each reporting date, the Cornpany assesses whether such financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impafred’ wheo one or more events that
have 3 detnmental impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or moere;

- the restructuring of a lean or advance by the Cempany on tarms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
- itis probahle that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other finandial reerganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances 2t an ameunt equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the foliowing, which are measured as 12 manth expected
credit losses:

- <lebt securities that are deterrnined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of defauit occurring cver the expected life of the financial instrument} has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit lesses,
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date
{or a shorter period if the expecied life of the Instrument is less than 12 months].

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected cradit losses is the maximum contractual pericd over which the Company is exposed to
credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since Initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the

Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effert, This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's histarical experience and informed credit 2ssessment and including farward -locking infarmation.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit {osses are a probability-weighted astimate of credit losses. Credit lusses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalis [i.e, the difference
between the cash flows due te the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive),

Presentation of allowanca for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amaortised cost are deducted from the gross carying amount of the assets.

Write off

The gross carcying amount of 3 financial asset is wrirten off {either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recevery. This is generally the
case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or scurtes of income that cauld genarate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject 1o the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could stili be subject to enforcement zctivities in ¢rder to comply with the Company's
procedures for recovery of amounts dua.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's nen-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment If any such indication exists,
then the asset's racoverable amount is estimated.

Each cash-generating units {CGU) represents the smallest Company of assets that generatgs cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are Companyed together into identified CGUs.

The recoverable amaunt of a CGU (or an individuzal asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the esticmated
future cash flews, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU [or tha asset).

An Impajirment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds s estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is sllocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then to reduce the cammying amounts of the ether assets of the CGU for Company of LGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,
the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or ne longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have baen determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if ne impairment ioss had been recognised.
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(i}

Inventaries.

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost {computed on a Weighted Average basis) or nei realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost includes the cost of
fair value of capsideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundabie), inward freight and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase The comparisen of cast and net realisable value is made on an item-by-ltem basls.
Stocks of stores and spares znd oparating supplies {viz. crockery, cutlery, glassware, linen etc} once issued to the operating departments are considered as
consumed and expensed Lo the Statement of Profit and tess. Unserviceable/damaged/discarded stocks and shortages are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Employee benefits

Shart-term emplayes benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or canstructive obligation ta pay this amount as a rasult of past sarvice provided by the empleyee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated absences

The lfzhilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The banefits are discounted using the market yields at the end ef the reporting period that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experence adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recogmised in profit or loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company does not have an uncanditionai right to defer the
sattiement For i least twelve months aftar the reporting date,

Defined centribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employmant benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further ameounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligatiens for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss In the pericds during
which the related servicas are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined tenefit plan is a past-employment beneflt plan ather than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s nat obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that ameunt and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The caleulation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit methed,

Premeasurements’ of the net defined benefit liability comprise of actuarial gains and lesses and the effect of the assel ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the perfad by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period fo the then-nat defined kenefit liability, taking into accaunt any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in siatement of profit and loss.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net abligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefiis is the amount of future benafit that emplovees have
earned in return for their service in the current and priar periods; that benafit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The obligation is measured an the basis of an annuval independent actuacial valuation using the projected unit credit method. premeasurement’s gaias or
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss In the period in which they arise.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embadying econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a relisble estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation. Expected future
aperating losses are not provided for.

Long-term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liahility. The unwinding of the discount is recagnised as finance
cost.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the presant abligation at the end of the reporting
period, The discount rate used o determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflacts current markat assessments of the fime value of meney and the risks
specific to the fiability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cnerous cantracts

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expecied cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost af
continuing with the contract. Before a provision s established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the asseis associated with that contract.

Contingent Liahilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligatien or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow ef
rasources. Infermation on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an owtflow of resources embodying economic
benefitis remate. A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an infiow of economic benefit Is probable.

Revenue recognition

Rental income

Revenues from property leased aut under operating lease is recognised as income on a straight line basis over the lease term unless the receipts from the lessee are
structured 1o increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, except where there is
uncertainty of ultimate collection. Lease incentives recelved are recognised as an integral part of the total lease income, over the Jease term.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that Itis probable that the economic benefits will low te the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for geods or services transferred to the customer. If the Cempany performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or befara payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional

Trade recaivable represents the Company's right, to an amount of consideration that is unconditional [i.2., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due},

Rendering of Intarnational Convention Centre Services

Revenue from rendering of Intarnational Convention Centre Services is recognized at the transaction price that is alocated 1o the performance obligation. Revenus
includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the reoms are occupied, feod and beverages are seld and banguet
services have been provided as per the contract with the customer respectively,
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

{Hii) Rendering of Other Services
Operation and Mainterance charges and parking charges are recagnized on an accrual basis as and when the Campany satisfies performance obligations by
delivering the services as per contractual agreed terms for providing maintenance of the property.
Considering that the company's primary source of Income is from lease arrangements with its customers which is cavered under Ind AS 116 as Leases, the
applicability of Ind AS 115 doas not have effect on the financial staterments of the Company.

{s) Interest Income
{nterest income from a financial asset Is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flaw o the Company and the amount of income can be
measured relfably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal autstanding and at the efective interest rate applicable.

{t} Recognition af interast income or expense
Interest income or axpense Is recognised using the effective interest mathod.
The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipis through the expectad life of the financial instrument
ta:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amontised cost of the financial liabillty,
In calculating interest income and expense, the affective interest cate is applied to the gross carrying amaount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired} or
to the zmortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amartised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.

{u}  fncome tax
Income tax comprises current andd deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and less except ta 1he extent that it relates te an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or lass for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the bast estimate of the tax amount expacted to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to Income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax
Deferved tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determinaed based on business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at gach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no lenger prebable that the related tax benefit will be
realised; such reductions are reversed when the probabllity of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable thal future taxable profits will be
avaitable against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expecied to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

The profits and gains from operations of an undertaking or an enterprise engaged in development of special economic zone are exempt from taxes under Section
80IAB of the Indian Income tax Act, 1961. The deduction can be claimed for any ten consecutive assessment years out of fifteen years beginning from the year in
wiich the Company is eligible for such deduction. In this regard, the Company recognizes deferred taxes in respact of those originating timing diffecences which
reverse after the tax holiday period, resulting in tax consequences, Timing differences which originate and reverse within the tax haliday peried do not result in tax
consequence and, therefore, no deferred taxes are recognised in respect of the same.

{v}  Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest incurred in connaction with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognisad as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Investrnent income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

(w} Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term depaosits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
10 an insignificant risk af changes in value. Other bank depesits which ara not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a maturity period of more than three
months are classified as other bank balances.

(x)}  Earmings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss] after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the welghted averzge
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted sarnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss] after tax {including the pest tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other ¢harges to expense or inceme relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issved on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares ara deemad to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit par share from continuing ordinary operaticns. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be cenveried as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive patential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. average market value of the putstanding sharas}. Dilutive potential equlty shares are determined independently for each period presented, The number of
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjustad for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.
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(v} Leases
Company as a Lesseg
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach far all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right te use the underlying assels.At inception of a coniract, the
Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, 2 lease. A contract is, or contains, 2 lease if the contract conveys the right to £ontral the use of an fdentified
asset for a period of time Tn exchange for consideration.

(i} Right of Use Asset

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-af-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date lass any lease incentives raceivad. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis from the commencement date to the end of lease term.
If ewnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase aption, depreciation 75
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer 1o the accounting policies of Impairment of non-financial assets.(Refer Note-5)

{ii} Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment. It also applies the lease of low value assets
recognition exemption 10 leases that are considered to be low value. Leasa payments on short-tarm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expensa
on a siralght-lne basis cver the lease tarm,

Company as a Lessar

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rantai
income arising (s accounted for on a straight-line basls over the lease terms. At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
company allecates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating fease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Centingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(z) Operating Segments
The Company is ¢perating in the real estate and infrastructure industry and has only domestic operstions. The Company has only one reportable business segment,
which Is development of real estate and infrastructure facilities {(including International Cenvention Centre facilities) and only one reportable gecgraphical segment.
All assets of the Company are domiciled in Indfa and no other geographical area.

{aa) Cperating Cycle
Based cn the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Campany
has determined its operating cycle a5 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non—current.

[ah) Recent prenouncements
Ministry of Corparate affalrs {"MCA") notifies new standards or amendments o the axisting standards under new Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time 1o time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable te the
Company.
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3(] Property, plant and

Property, plant and equipment

Flant and Office Furniture and Mobile Motor

Particulars 1 I Fi Camputers
Machinery Electrical Fittings equipment P Fixtures equipment vahicles Tatal
Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3056 115.97 217.82 67.91 139.57 155 17.22 590.80
Additions - - ¢.14 - - 221 - 235
Dispasals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 30.56 115.97 217.95 67.91 139.77 3.76 17.22 593.15
Balance as at 1 April 2022 10.56 11597 21782 (5.8 139.77 155 1226 584.81
Additions - - - 1.03 - - 4.98 5.99
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 30.56 115.97 217.82 67.91 139,77 1.55 17.22 590.80
Accumulzted depreciation ,amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3036 115.97 177.36 63.26 13977 155 12.57 541.04
Depreriaticn and amaertisation for the year - - 15.08 292 - - 0.75 18.75
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 30.56 115.97 192.44 66.18 139.77 1.55 13.32 559.79
Balance as at 1 April 2022 30.56 11597 152.87 §0.56 139.77 155 12.26 513.54
Depreciation and amertisation for the year - - 24.49 270 - - 0.31 27.50
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 30.56 115.37 177.36 63.26 139.77 1.55 12.57 541.04
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 - - 25.52 172 - 2.21 3.90 33.36
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 - - 40,48 4.65 - - 4.65 49.76
3{i) w ible assets

Particulars Ir ble assets
Cost Software Totai
Balance as at 1 Aprfl 2023 26.38 26.38
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 26.38 26.38
Balance as at 1 April 2022 2638 26.38
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance a5 at 31 March 2023 26.38 26.38
Accumulated depreciation ,amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2023 26.38 26.28
Deprediation and amortisation for the year - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 3t March 2024 26.38 26.38
Balance as at 1 April 2023 26.38 26.28
Deprediation and amortisation for the year . -
Disposals - -
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 26.38 26.38
MNet Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 -
Net Carrying amount as st 31 March 2023 - -

4[N Investment property

Particulars Building Cthers Total
Balance as at 1 April 2023 24481073 52,920.23 297,830.96
Additions . 4,478.48 4,478.48
Dispasals - [1,406.47) 11,406.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 244,910.73 55,992.24 300,902.97
Balance as at 1 April 2022 244,877.41 51,883.93 295,761.34
Additions 33.32 1,036.30 1,069.62
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 2% March 2023 244,910.73 52,920.23 297,830.96
Batance as at 1 April 2023 76,180.19 32,930.80 109,110,992
Depreciation and amortisation for the year 5,796.47 5,144.26 14,940.73
Disposals - (1,406.47) [1,406.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 85,976,566 36,668.59 122,645.25
Balance s at 1 April 2022 66,384.94 27,040.46 93,425.40
Depreciation and amortisation for the year 9,795.25 5,890.34 15,685.59
Dispasals - R .
Balance a5 at 31 March 2023 76,180.19 32,930.80 199,110.99
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 158,534.07 19,323.65 178,257.72
Met Carrylng amount s at 31 March 2023 168,730.54 19,985.43 188,719.97
Note:

i} The title deeds of ail the immavable properues included in investment properties (other than the land where the Company is the lessee and the Jease agreements are duly exetuled in favour of
the lessee), are held in the name of the Company.
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4ii} Investment property under construction

Particulars As at Movement in the Asat “:::;:‘::;:" As at

31 March 2024 Current year 31 March 2023 year 31 March 2022
Caonstruction costs 4505.52 4,505.52 - - 28,017.76
Borrowing costs - - - - 13,927.74
Othar direct costs {net of direct inceme) 33235 338.35 - - 3,355.18
Transferred to Investment Fropary {4,478.48} i4,478.48) - - {45,3G0.68)
Tetal 365.39 365.39 - - -
Note:

Investment property comprises a number of commercial properties thar are leased to third parties. Each of the leases entered are normally for 2 period of 5 tp 10 years Subsequent renewals are
negotiated with the lessee or as per the terms of initial agreement are automatically renewed.

The fair value of investrent preperty are detarmined after considering valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant profzssional qualification and experience in respect
of the investment property being valued, A valuation model in 2ccordance with that recommended by the Iniernational Voluation Standards Committee has been apolied for valuations performed
by Independant valuer. The independent vatuer is a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies {Registered Valuers 2nd Valuation) Rules, 2017.

Valuation technique
The Company follows discounted cash flows technique which considers the present value of net cash flows Lo be generated from the investment property, using risk-adjusted discount rates,

The fair value measurement for all af the investment property has been catagorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs ta the valuation tachnique used.
Key Assumptions

In this regard, the key assumptions used Tor fair value calzulations are as follows:

- Risk-adjusted discount rates

- Terminal growth/ capitafisation rate

- Budgatad EBITDA based on prevalent rental rates

Significant unobservable inputs used in valuation:

Asat As at

Sansitivi
31 March 2020 31 March 2023 N

Risk-adjusted discount rates (%) Estimated fair value would decrease (increase) if expected discaunt rate were
higher (lower}

Estimated fair value would increase {decrease} if expecied terminal capitalisation
ware Jower [higher}

Estimated falr value wauld increasa {decrease] if expected lease rent were higher
(lowear}

12.08% 11.20%

Terminal capitalisation rate (%) 7.25%-% 8.0%-8.5%

Estimated lease rentals (INR Per sq. §t.) IMR 38-Rs.130 (NRS5Q-Rs.122

Reconciliation of fair value
The Company evaluates Impairment for Investment property and Investment property under construction altogether as both relate o same project. The following is the reconcliation in the fair
wvzlues as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Particulars Fair value
As at 01 April 2023 667,870.00
Additions 4,478.48
Fair value difference 38,8152
Balance as at 31 March 2024 711,330.00
As at 01 April 2022 568,728.00
Additions 1,069.62
Fair value difference 08,072.28

Balance as at 31 March 2023

5 _Right-of-use asset

Particulars Leasehold land Total

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2023 141,275.68 144,279.68
Additions - -
Eliminated on dispesal of assets - -
Balance as at 31 Maich 2024 141,279.68 141,279.68
Bafance a5 at 1 April 2022 141,279.68 141,279.63
Additions - -
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 141,279.68 141,275.63

Accumulzted deprediation

Balance as av 1 April 2023 20,859.58 20,859.58
Charges for the year 1,426.92 1,426.92
Eliminated on disposal of assats - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 22,286.50 22,286.50
Balance as at 1 April 2027 19,432.66 19,432.66
Charges forthe year 1,426.92 142682
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 20,853.58 20,859.58
Net Carrying mount as at 31 March 2024 118,993.18 114,993.18
Net Carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 12{,420.1¢ 120,420.10

Page 15

Page 89 of 108



INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

6 Investments

Investments carried at amortised cost

Investment in Equity Shares of Other Companies fully Paid-up

Non-current Current
. As at As at
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 31 March 2024
{Restated| {Restated)

2,380,000 (31 March 2023: 2,380,000) equity shares of

. . 238.00 238.00 - -
Perinyx Neap Private Ltd {Refer footnate below)
1,000 (31 March 2023: 1,000} eguity shares of Echanda 001 001
Urja Private Limited (Refer footnote below) ) . : :
136,500 (31 March 2023: 136,500) equity shares of
Vagarzi Windfarms Limited {Refer footnote below) 1385 13.55 - -

Total 251.65 251.65 0.01 0.01

Note 1:
{i} Aggregate Carrying Value of Unquotad Investments 35165 251.65 0.01 o.01

{Net)

{ii) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of
Investments

Note:

The above investments represents investment in equity shares of the above mentioned entities pursuant to the requirement under the Electricity Act, in
connection with the power purchase arrangement that the Company has in place with these parties, As per the terms of these investments, the Company is not
entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be entitled to receive the amount invested equivalent to the face value of the equity shares upon expiry of

such agreements.

7 Other financial assets

{unsecured, considered good)

MNen-current Current
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 {Restated) 31 March 2024 [Restated)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Recovery Expense Fund 25.00 25.00 -
Security deposits 553.54 221.18 ~ -
Total 578.54 246.18 - -
8 Other Assats
|unsecured, considered good)
Non-current Current
i As at As at
Particulars As at 21 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 (Restated) 31 March 2024 {Restated)
Goods and Services tax receivable - - 287.31 149.67
Advance to suppliers - - 126.93 144.81
Prepaid expenses 3,578.92 1,150.62 1,059.52 651.36
Batances with Government and other authorities - - 406.35
QOther current assets - - - 0.14
Capital advances 332.40 541.28 - -
Lease equalization reserve 6,366.39 5,383.35 2,580.53 169.44
Total 10,277.71 7,075.15 4,054.,29 1,521.77
Non-current tax assets{Net}
As at
Particulars As at 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 [Restated)
Advance tax and tax deducted at scurce (net of
provision for tax: INR Nil; (2023:INR Nil)) 137526 107372
Total 1,379.26 1,079.72

The Company has an accounting lass and significant carry forward losses accumulated over the prior years. Hence, there are no tax expenses in the current

year. Accordingly, certain disclosures required by Ind AS 12, including tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss, reconciliation of effective tax rates are
0t refavanitin the'context of the Company,
SR il
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

10 Inventories

- As at As at
Particutars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Food and bevarages 95.85 51.52
Stares and operating supplies 85.58 56.91
Totat 181.43 108.43
11 Trade receivables
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
{Secured considered good}
From Related Party (Refer note-36) 535.49 406.09
Other than Related Party 1,604.88 1,509.53
Unsecured considered good)
Other than Related Party 317.02 137.67
Total 2,457.39 2,053.29
Note: Trade receivables ageing analysis
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Unbhilled revenue | Mot due | Less than 6 | 6 months - More than 3
1-2Years 2-3Years
maonths 1 year Years Total
(gll:;dlspumd Trade recetvaples - Considered 946.86 | 228.77 1,138.25 20.15 81.68 - - 2,424.71
{ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considerad 12.68
doubtful - - - - 32.68 - )
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered
good - - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade receivables- Considered
doubtful - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 (Restated)
Particulars Unbilled revenue | Not due| Less than 6 | 6 months - More than 3
1-2Years 2-3Years
months 1year Years Total
gig;dlsputed Trade receivables - Considerad 817.83 561.52 618.62 55,32 ) ) ) 2,052.29
{ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - Censidered
doulstful - - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered
sood - - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade receivables- Considered
doubtful - - - - - - - J
12 Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated}
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 454.50 1,214.26
- in deposit accounts with less than or equal to 3 months original maturity 29,616.82 420.51
Cash in hang ) 2.59 0.77
Total 30,073.91 1,635.54
13 Other bank balances
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
In designated depesit accounts held as margin money for bank guarantee and Holdco reserve - 15,780.00
Total - 15,780.00
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

14 Share capital
{a} Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up :
As at Asat
particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[Restated)
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of INR 10 each 1,550,000,000 159,000.00 90,000,000 4,000.00
Preference Shares of INR 100 each 50,000,000 50,000.00 - -
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 @ach 10,000,000 1,000.00 10,000,000 1,000.00
\ssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital :
£quity Shares of INR 10 each 74,984,350 7.498.44 74,984, 350 7,498.44

Total 74,984,350 7,498.44 74,984,350 7.,498.44

{b} Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the and of the year
As at
. As at 31 March 2023
Particulars 31 March 2024 " |Restated]
Number of Sharas Amount Number of §hares Amount

{i) Equity shares
As at the beginning of the year 74,984,350 7.498.44 10,000 1.00
Add: Issued during the year - - 74,974,350 7,497.44
As at the end of the year 74,984,350 7,498.44 74,984,350 7,498.44

[c) Terms attached to the Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declzres and pays dividends, if any, in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be antitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wil! be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholdars.

{d ) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023 [Restated)

Particulars -
Number of Shares % holding Number of Shares % holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Yata Realty and Infrastructure Limited™ 38,242,019 51% 38,242,019 51%
CPP Investment Board Private Holdings {4} inc 36,742,331 49% 36,742,331 49%
* Includes & shares of INR 10 each held jointly with certain individuals.
{e) Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company
Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 (Restated)
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up held by
Tata Realty and Infrastructore Limited* 38,242,019 3,824.20 38,242,01% 3,824.20
L£PP Investment Board Private Holdings (4} Inc 36,742,331 3,674.23 36,742,331 3,674.23
74,984,350 7,498.44 74,984,350 7,498.44
* Includes 6 shares of INR 10 each held jointly with certain individuals.
15 Other Equity
Common control
) acquisiton defieit Securities Defined benefit
Particulars Retained earnings account on N i Total
- Premium planned adjustment
acqusition of
Subsidiary
As at 1 April 2022 {Restated) (58.375.51) (258,295.18} 42,726.02 {6.38) (273,955.05)
On issue of equity shares during the year - - 52,626.75 - $2,626.75
Restatement of Deferrad tax (6,585.50) - - - (6,586.50}
{Loss) for the year (17,214.77} - - - {17.114.77}
Other comprehensive Income for the year - 2.02 2,02
As at 31 Mareh 2023 {82,076.78) (258,299.18) 95,352.77 {4.36) (245,027.55)
{Loss) for the year (12,%39.62) - [0.01) (12,939.64)
Other comprehensive Income for the year - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 {95,016.40| (258,299.18) 95,352.77 14.37} {257,967.18)

i) Securities pramium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus sharesin

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
if) Retained earnings
_Retainzd earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any distribution to shareholders.
1 filCommon control acquisition deficit
B ) )
——Aamimin .%
o it
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i acquisition deficit was created to record excess of consideration paid over the net assets taken over pursuant to acguistion of subsidiary,
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Netes o financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

17 Other financiaf habilities

Nen-cwrent Current
Particulars Asat As at Asat As at
31 March 2024 A1 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated) [Restated)
Financial liabitities at amortised cost
Interest free security deposits from custemers 8,854.26 12,321.33 6,753.60 5,608.08
Advance fram Customers - - - i97.42
Capital Creditors - - 687.04 2i5.93
Employee benefits payable - - 0.64 18.74
Total 8,854.26 12,321.33 7,441.28 6,044.17
18 Provisions
Nen-current Curzent
. As at As at
Farticulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 {Restated) 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Gratuity{refer note- 30) 0.64 0.33 . -
Lempensated absences{refer note- 30) - 3.00 3.94 131
Total 0.64 3.33 3.9a 1321
19 Deferzed tax liahilities (net]
Movement Movemeant
Asat Racognised Recognised Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 in Statement of In Other 31 March 2024
{Restated) Profit and camprehensive
Loss Income
Deferred Tax Liabiities
Investment Property, Froperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets 19,271.57 [13,832.10) - 5,439.47
Unamortised Brokerage and core leasing fees 535.73 1,011.84 1,547.56
Defined benefit obligation 0.12 - 0.01 0.13
Lease equilisaticn reserve 1,940.37 1,186.04 - 3,126.41
Security Daposit from Tenants 355.85 6.02 - 361.87
Dreferred Tax Assets
NCD ON Tril ITA & CPPIB {3,621.35) (2,474.77) - (8,096.12)
Cany forward business / depreciation [osses and others* {15,203.59) 9,483.56 - [5,720.03)
Deferred Tax liability {net) 3,278.69 {6,615.41) 0.01 {3,340.70)
* As per assessment order dated 28 September 2021 reapening the assessment for the assessment year 2015-2015, the ing officer has disallowed the cumulative business loss of INR 17,432.78 Lakhs and

unabsorbed depreciation of INR 23,176.17 Lakhs uplo assessment year 2014-15 under section 79 of the Income-tax Act, 1951 [the Act), due te a change in shareholding pattern of the Company by more than 51%
in the assessment year 2015-16. The Company has filled an appeal with C.|. T{Appeals} against the said order, on the grounds that the said section 79 is not applicable as no new shareholder has entered into the
Company due o change in shareholding.

However, on a conservative basis, the Company has not recognised any deferred tax asset on the cumulative business loss of INR 17,432.78 Lakhs upto assessment year 2014-15. The Company based on various
judgements of the Supreme Court of Indig, is canfident that the unahsorbed depreciation of INR 23,176.17 Lakhs upto assessment year 2014-15 would be allowed and hence has continued to recognised the
deferrad tax asset on the sarme.

Mote: As per the Company’s assessment, there are no material incoma tax uncertainties over incomne tax treatments during the current and previous financial year.

21 Tzade payahles
P As at 31 March 2023
articulars
31 March 2024 {Restated)
(a} Total Dutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smalt Enterprises {Refer note-38) 11001 13.53
{b) Tetal Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Erterprises
- Due to related party {Refer Note 36) 43164 69.71
- Duz to cther than related party 3,084.35 2,795.63
Total 3,626.00 2,878.87
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Unbilled ot due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
years
Micre enterprises and small enterprises - 110.01 - - - - 110.01
Others 1,935.49 - 1,5%73.72 0.78 - 351599
Disputed trade payables
wicro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Gthers - - - - - _
Totai 1,935.49 110.01 1,579.72 a.78 - - 3,626.0C
As at 31 March 2023 {Restated)
Particulars Unbilled Mot due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years fare than 3 Total
years
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 13.53 - - - 13.53
QOthers 2,269.10 - 59334 2.84 . - 2,865.34
Cisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - -
Total 2,269.16 - 606.87 2.84 - - 2,378.87

Based on information received by the Company from s vendors, the amount of principal outstanding In respect of MSME as at Balance Sheet date coverad under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas
Devefopment Act, 20086 is INR 110.01 lakhs {31 March 2023 is 13.53 lakhs). There were no delays in the payment of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises.

22 Qther liabilities

Non-current Current
Particulars Asat As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Restated) {Restated)

Advance received from customer - - 774.52 45539

Statutory dues payable - - 123.84 71.80
‘Upedqroedrentt T 4,136.82 2,382.91 1,004.86 965.58
ey A R Total 4,136.82 2,382,91 1,903.22 1,458.77

L :!rﬂ_:EEﬂ ‘rc\n't\: L‘Jates\_to diffarence of present value of lease related security deposits recejved and actual amount received and is released to the statement of profit and loss en straighi-fine basiy g,g:ﬂ'l:n:;—'::;-'.:_q
I lease, v b o bR e -
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED

Notes to financial statermnents for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency; Indian rupees in Jakhs)

23 Revenue from operations

24

25

26

Year ended
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
(Rastated)
{Recognised over a period of time)
Revenue from property rental
Rental incame 43,611.19 33,216.79
Parking fees 891.70 B69.55
Revenue from contracts with customers
Utility income 4,417.60 3,388.00
Cperations and maintenance income 5,369.47 5,005.38
Revenue from International conventional centre
Room rentals 2,765.81 1,937.57
Food and beverages 2,035.41 1,464.80
Other services 153.43 113.61
Other operating revenue
Tenant recoveries on restoration and repair works 218.24 854.27
Total 59,462.85 47,449.97
Other income
Year ended
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
{Restated)
Interest income under the effective interest method
- on fixed deposits with banks 1,660.85 492.96
Interest on Income tax refund 76.87 387.44
Other non-operating income
-Sundry Balances written back 19.82 190.81
-Profit on sale of fixed assets 61.44 -
- Other Miscellaneous income 78.50 54.03
Total 1,897.50 1,125.24
Food and Beverages consumed
ear en
Particulars Year ended 31 I\‘:larch 2‘:1::
31 March 2024
{Restated)
Food and beverages consumed
Opening stock 51.52 7.60
Add: Purchases 485.26 338.77
Clopsing stock {95.85) {51.52)
Sub-total 440.93 294.85
Employee benefit expense
Year ended
. Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
Salaries, wages and bonus B83.99 172.69
Contributicn to provident fund 1.35 4.44
Gratuity expense 0.29 0.90
Staff welfare expense 0.33 041
Total 85.96 178.44
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INFOPARK PROFERTIES LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

27 Finance costs
Year ended
. Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)}
Interest expense
- on Term loan and overdraft 16,598.99 14,553.07
- on Inter corparate deposit from related party [ Note-36) 128.82 20.25
-on Nen convertible debentures 30,813.80 24,746.16
Finance charges 160.74 117.86
Unwinding of interest expense on security deposits 1,296.36 1,505.46
Total 49,098.71 40,942.80
28 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Year ended
. Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {(Refer note 3) 18.75 27.50
Depreciation of Right ta use an asset {Refer note 5) 1,426.52 1,426,92
Depreciation on investment property [Refer note 44i)) 14,940.73 15,685.59
Total 16,386.40 17,140.01
29 Other expensas
Year ended
Particulars 31 :ﬂ:;:;‘;z: 31 March 2023
(Restated)
Property management expenses
Manpower cost 1,361.50 1,302.38
Repairs & maintenance 734.65 851.19
Power and fuel 547.72 543.01
Consumable 212.74 202.55
Professional Fees 320.30 286.28
Annual maintenance charges 692.21 693.39
Water charges 251.30 168.45
Insurance 204.57 171.65
Events and Others 185.24 155.7¢
Power and fuel expenses 4,179.86 4,105.42
Operating supplies consumed 100.28 43.42
Office maintenance 124.78 55.11
Advertisement and marketing expenses 87.27 136.31
Travelling expenses 62.73 53.23
Management fees 321.45 213.14
Insurance 16.94 24.23
Laundry expenses 76.77 63.13
Legal and professional fees 167.16 215.40
Payment to auditors 52.48 32,27
Manpower Consultancy expenses 783.78 611.81
Amortisation of brokerage expenses 694,97 719.43
Commission to travel agents 83.23 84.72
Communication expenses 32.86 3392
Bank charges 1.54 1.41
Rates and taxes 1,495.08 1,535.45
Expenditure on corporate environmental responsibility - 456.62
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refec note 40) - 105.42
Asset management fees 1,351.42 1,667.08
Repairs and maintenance 316.25 233.00
Security charges 85.87 93.07
Sundry balances written off 100.80 79.20
Miscellanous expenses 261.54 161.70
Total 14,907.37 15,230.09
Payments to auditors
As auditor
Statutory audit 42.00 32.27
b Reimbursement of expenses 10.45 -
+ Total 52.46 3227 =R
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: lndian rupees in lakhs)

30 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”

(U]

(i}

Contribution to Provident fund

As at 32 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024
{Restated)

Contribution to provident fund recognised as an expense under "Employas 135 444
banefits expanse”. )

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company pravides for gratuity, a defined banefit retirement plan (‘the Plan’) covenng eligible employees governed by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Plan provides
payment to vested employees who have rendered at least five years of continuous service towards gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages far every completed year of service or
part thereof In excess of six menths, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee at the time of retirement, death or termination of employment. Liabilties for the
same are determined through an actuarial valuation as at the reporting dates using the “projected unit ¢redit method.”

Risk exposure: These defined benefit plans expose tha Company to actuanial risk such as longitivity risks, interest rate risks, market {investment) risks.
The following 1able sets cut the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of prefit or loss and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the
respective plans

Gratuity Compensatad absences
. Asat As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated) {Restated)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.33 46,99 4.31 36.50
Current service cost 0.28 249 - -
Intecest cost on benafit abligation 0.02 0.28
Total (included in the statament of profit and loss) 0.30 272 - -
Benefits paid - {46.58) - (32.19}
Liabilities assurmed - - - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions {includad in 0.02 (2.70} - -
other comprehensive income)
Balance as at the end of the year 0.65 0.33 4.31 4.3t
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the year 0.65 0.33
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year - -
Difference 0.65 0.33
Amaunt recegnised in the Batance Sheet 0.65 0.33
Expenses Recognised In the statement of profit and less
Current Service Cast 028 2.44
Interest Cost 0.02 0.28
Expected Return on Flan Assets - -
Naet Actuarial (Gain) / Loss To Be Recognised 0.02 (2.70)
Past service cost - -
Expense Recognised in the statement of profit and loss G.32 0.02
Balance Sheet Recenciliation
Opening net liability 0.23 46.99
Expense as above 0.30 272
Employers contribution {paid) - (46.68)
Liabllities assurned & actuarial changes 0.02 (2.70)
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 0.65 0.33

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and obligations for the Company's plan are shown helow:-

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
[Restatad)
Discount rate 7.10% 7.25%
Future salary increases 8% per Annum 8% per Annum
Attrition rate 30% 25%

Assumpticns regarding future mortality are based on published statfstics and mortality tables.

Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniarity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

The Company liability on account of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not applicable.

As at March 31, 2024, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation is 5 years (March 31, 2023: 7 years).

As at 31 March 2023

Experi Ad, H

perience Adjustments As at 31 March 2024 {Restated)
Defined benefit obligation 0.65 033
Plan assets - -
{Deficit} {0.65} (033}

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities - .
Experience adjustment on plan assets - -
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

[{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs}

VI

Sensitivity analysls

Reasanably possible changes at the reporting date to ene of the relevant aciuarial assumptions, holding ather assumptions constant, would have affecred the defined benafit

obligation by the amounts shown below:

, As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2623 (Rastated)
Partizulars

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate [~/ + 1%) 68,145 61,433 34,950 30,574
% change comparad to hase due to sensitivity 5.4% -5.0% 7.0% -6.4%
Salzry Growth Rate {- / + 1%} 61,430 63,082 30,570 34,911
% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity -5.0% B6.3% -6.4% 5.9%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates} 101,851 37,989 54,513 18,279
% thange compared 1o base due to sensithity 57.50% -41.30% 66.90% -44,00%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates} 64,652 64,675 32,653 32,670
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Other long term employment benefits
Compensated absences

The liabil'ty towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2024 recognised in the Balence Sheet based an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
methad amounted o IMR 1.35 lacs [2023: 4.44 Lacs) and the charge to the Statement of profit and loss amounted to INR (0.37) lacs {2023: INR 0.55 lacs).
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31 Falr value hlerarchy
Financial instruments by catagory

Carrying amaunt Fair Value
31 Macch 2024 amorted | o L;‘:f;ﬂg;‘:::" Level 2- Significant | Level 3-Significant |
Cast observable Inputs | unohkservable Inputs
markets
Financlal assets
Equity investment in others (Refer Note §| 251,66 - - 251.66 - - 251.66 251.66
Other Financial assets 578.54 - - 578.54 - 578.54 - 578.54
Trade receivables 2,457.3% - - 2,457.39 - - -
Cash and cash aquivalents 30,073.91 - 30,073.91 - - - -
Other bank balances - - - - - - -
Total financial assets 33,361.50 - - 33,361.50 - 578.54 251,66 830.20
Financial llabllitles
Barrowings {Tetm loan} 342,859.39 - - 342,859.39 - 342,859.39 - 342,859.3%
Interest free security deposits from customers 15,607.86 - - 15,607.86 - 15,607.86 - 15,607.85
Short term horrowlings [ncluding Bank overdraft) 231,887.73 - - 231,887.73 - - - -
Capital creditors 687.04 - - 687.04 - - - -
Employee benefits payable D64 - - 0.64 - - - -
Trade payables 3,626.00 | 2,878.87 - 6,504.87 - - - -
Total financial llabilitles 594,668.66  2,878.87 - 597,547.53 - 358,467.25 - 358,467.25
Carrying amount Fair Value
. Level 1 - Quoted P, -
31 March 2023 [Restated) Amortised evTPL | FeToC Tatal prica in active Levet 2 - Significant | Leval 3 - Significant Tatal
Cost ohservableinputs | unobservable inputs
markets
Financlal assets
Equity investment in athers {Refer Nate &) 251.66 - - 251866 - - 251.65 251.66
Other Financial assets 246,18 - - 246.18 - 246.18 - 246.18
Trade receivables 2,053.2% - - 2,053.29 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,635.5¢ - - 1,635.54 - - - -
Cther bank balances 15,780.00 - 15,780.00 - - - -
Tatal financial assets 19,966.67 - - 19,966.67 - 286.18 251.66 457.84
Financial Habilitles
Borrowings {Term loan) 542,011.83 - 542,011.83 - 542,011.83 - 542,011.83
Interest free security deposits from customers 17,929.41 - - 17.920.41 - 17,929.41 - 17.929.41
Shart term borrowings (Including Bank overdrafty 6,049.57 - - 6,049 57 - - - -
Capitai creditars 719.53 - - 21953 - - - -
Other payzbles 197.42 - - 197.42 - - -
Employee benefits payable 18.74 - - 18.74 - - -
Trade payablas 2878.87 - - 2,578.87 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 569,305.77 - - 568,305.77 - 550,941.24 - 559,941.24

Fair value hierarchy

This sectian expiains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value and measured at amortised
cost and for which fair values are disclosed In the financial statements. To provide an indicaticn about the relizbility af the inputs used in determining falr value, the Greup has classified its

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Financlal assets and labllitles measured at amortised cost
The Cempany has not disclosed fair values of financial instruments such as trade recelvables and related unbllled revenue, cash and cash equivaients, cther bank balances, lease rental

receivailes, bank overdraft, capltal creditors, interest accrued on fixed deposits, certaln advances to empleyees, trade & other payables and employee benefit payables {that are short term in
nature), because their carrying amounts are reasonable approximations of their fair vatues.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilitTes Included in the level 3 categery above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a

discounted cash flow analysis, with the maost significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. There were no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 during the
year ended 31 March 2024 and no transfers in either direction during the year ended 31 March 2023,
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The foillowing tables show the valuation technigues used in measuring Levet 2 and Lavel 3 fair values for financial instruments in the balance sheet, as well as the signlficant unobservable
inputs used in measuring Level 3 fair values for financlal instruments,

Financial instruments measured at fair value {Level 2 and Level 3}

Type

Interest free security deposits fram customers

Other Financial assets

Borrowings {Term loan)

Equity instruments

Valuation technique
Discaunted cash flaws: The valuation model considers the present value of expected payments, discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate. The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insignificart.
Discounted cash flows: The valustion model considers the present value of expected receipts, discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate. The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insigrificant.
Discounted tash flows: The vaiuation modef considers the present value of expected payments, discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate, The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insignificant.

As per the terms of these investments, the Company is not antitled to any other returas or benefits ang will be entitled to receive the
amount Invested equivalent to the face value of the equity shares vpen expiry of such agreements. Thus fair value is equal to cost.
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32 Fipancial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
a. Credit risk ;
b. Liquidity risk ; and
<. Market risk

Risk management framework

The Campany’s board of directors has overall respensibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board of directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoting the Company’s risk
management paolicies.

The Caompany’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and coatrols and ta monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewad reguiarly to reflect
changes in market cenditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control epvironment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Cempany’s audit sub-committes oversees how management moniters compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty ¢ a financial instrument fails te meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables, cectain loans and advances and other financial assets. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximumn credit exposure,

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously menitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and
impairment that represents its estimate of losses in respect of the Company's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other
financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other recejvables are as follows:

Carrying Amount
Particulars 31 March 2023
31 March 2024 {Restated)
Trade receivables 2,457.39 2,053.29
2,457.39 1,787.06
Cash and other bank balances 30,073.91 17,415.54
Cther financial assets including investments 830.20 497.84
33,361.50 19,700.44

Trade and ether raceivables

The Company‘s exposure to credit risk Is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each custemer. The demographics of the
zustomner, including the default risk of the indusiry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk
assessment.

Default is said to occur when the customer defaults on an obligation, Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of gach reporting
period are raviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables
do not reflect any significant ¢redit losses. Given that the macre economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not
undergone any substantial change, the Campany expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management
believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by mere than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss at the reporting dates related to several customers that have
defaulied on their payments to the Company and are not expecied to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to econornic
circumstances.

In addition, an impairment analysis is performed at 2ach reporting date on an individual basis for al) the major individua! custemers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is the carrying value of each c¢lass of financial assets that are not secured by
security deposits. The summary of exposure in trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

|Restated)
Secured by security daposit obtained 2,140.37 1,915.62
Unsecured portion of receivables 317.02 137.67

Lease rent receivable

The Company’s laasing arrangement represents the fit-out ¢r interior work completed for the customers which have been classified as
Finance lease. This balance is fully constituted by one customer. The creditworthiness of the custemer is evaluated prior to sanctioning
credit facilities. Appropriate procedures for follow-up and recovery are in place to monitor credit risk. The Company does not expect any
losses from non-parformance by theses counter-parties.

Cash and bank balances
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting dates. The ¢redit
waorthiness of such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an angaing basis and is considered to be good.

Other financial assets ingluding investments
This balance is primarily constituted by deposit given to Tamil Nadu Electricity 8card for obtaining electricity connection. The Company does
not expact any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties. The balance amount considered unamortised investments in certain
-entities pursuant to the requirement under the Electricity Act, in connection with the power purchase arrangement that the Company has
- .-Irf"p_lace with these parties. As per the terms of these investments, the Company is not entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be

k' r:nt:T.:[erl to receive the amount invested equivalent to the face vague ozfsthe equity shares upon expiry of such agreements.
[ 1 age
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32  Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

b} Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilivies that are settled by delivering cash or anather
financizl asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities whan they are due, under
both nermal and stressed corditions, without incurring unacteptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The company has generated net cash from operations
of INR 36,107.50 Lakhs {31 March 2023: INR 31,257.0] Lakhs).
Further, the Company has unutilised portion of Secured short term facilities aggregating to INR 8,719.25 lzkhs {31 March 2023: INR 10,000.00 Lakhs) repao rate quarterly raset,
which the managemeni believes is sufficient to meet all its liabilities maturing during the next 12 months.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining cantractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, including contractual interest but
excluding impact of netting agreements.

As at 31 March 2024

Contractual cash flows .
Particulars Carrying amount
1 year or less 110 1 years 2105 years More than 5 years Total

Nan-derivative finaacial liabilities

X i 5,753.60 1,921.12 2,091.22 5,019.18 21,785.12 15,607.86
Interest free security deposits from customers
Borrowings{Term Loan} 24,452.23 24,698.17 72,136.57 189,324.34 310,611.31 189,5670.54
Borrowings{Overdraft)) 1,280.75 . - - 1,280.75 1,280.75
Borrowings{NCD) 219,408.45 - - 347,426.12 566,835.57 162,168 85
Borrewings(ICD) 2,317.53 - - - 2,217.53 2,21753
Employee benefits payable 0.64 - - - 0.64 0.64
Trade payables 3.736.01 - - - 373601 3,736.01
Capital Creditors 6B7.04 - - - 6B7.04 687.04
Total 258,537.25 26,619.2% 80,227.79 541,769.64 907,153.97 375,369.22

As at 31 March 2023 [Restated)
Contraciual cash flows

Particulars Carrying amount
1 year or less 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years | fore than 5 years: Total

Non-derivative financial Habilities

. 5,608.08 7,576.40 6,151.28 2,960.46 22,296.22 17,919.41
Interest free security deposits from customers
Borrowings{Term Loan] 21,789.62 24,358.46 71,885.53 213,645.60 331,679.22 195,155.12
Borcowings{NCD) - 225,056.23 - 347,426.12 572,482.35 352,661.03
Borrawings{ICD) 24525 - - - 245.25 245.25
Employee benefits payabie 18.74 - - - 18.74 18.74
Trade payables 2,878.87 - - - 2,878.87 2,878.87
Gthar payables 197.42 - - - 187.41 197.42
Capital Creditors 212.93 - . - - 215.93 215.93
Total 30,957.91 256,991.09 78,036.81 564,032.18 $30,013.00 56%,305.77

The Company hss a secured bank loan that contains  loan covenant. The Company shall at all timas till the final settlement date, maintain the debt service coverage ratio not tess
than 1.10x .The Financial Covenants shall be tested annually on the basis of audited linanclal statements of the Company. Under the agreement, the covenant is monitored on a
regular basis by the treasury department and regularly reported to manzgement to ensure compliance with the agreement. The interest payments on variazle Interest rate loans
in the table above reflect markel interest rates at the reporting date and thase amounts may change as market Interest rates change. Except for these financial Nabilities, it is not
expected that the cash flows Included in the maturity analysis could ecour significantly earlier, or at significantly gifferent amounts.

¢} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity arices - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The Company is domiciled in India and has its revenues and other transactions denominated in its functional currency i.e. INR, Accordingly, the
Company i not exposed to gny currency risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure
market risk for changes in interest rates relates borrowings from Banks.

Interest rate rish exposure
The exposure of the Company’s variable intarest rate berrowing to interest rate changes (other than financial insiruments measurad at fair value} at the end of the repariing
period are as follows:

Panticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Varizble-rate instruments
Financial liabilities 380,551.29 385,155,127
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets 28,616.82 16,200.51

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for apy fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the Company does not have any designate financial
liabilities. Therefore, a change in interest rares at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 33 basls points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased equity and profit or Joss by amounis shown below. This
analyses assurmes that afl ather variables, in particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. This calculziion alse assumes that the change occurs at the balance
sheet date and has been calcvlaied based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date, The pericd end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt
outstanding during the period.

Mavement in hasis Effect on loss
points before tax
31 March 2024 + 35 basis pn!nB 133333
- 35 hasis points {1,333.33)
+ 35 basis points 1,348.04
- 35 basis points {1,348 04) B
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33 Leases

Operating leases

The Company has leased out its investment properties to various tenants. No part of lease income is derived from
variable payments. Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 116 are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments{Un-discounted)

As at
. As at
Particulars 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
{Restated)
Receivahle within 1 year 36,228.0% 30,928.44
Receivable within 1-2 years 35,637.71 26,042.33
Receivable within 2-3 vears 31,550.97 23,323.33
Receivable within 3-4 years 18,861.10 17,148.22
Receivable within 4-5 years 14,265.18 2,210.15
Receivable after 5 years 101,617.51 3,902.21

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Rental incorme from operating lease agreements with tenants 44,502.85 34,086.34
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that generated
rental income

Direct operating expenses arising from investrment property that did not
generate rental income

23,067.93 23,841.99

5,5631.28 5,772.50

34 Contingent liabkilities and commitments
a) Contingenties

There are no claims against the Company which are not acknowledged as debts as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.

b} Commitments
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of capital advances and not
provided faor, amounts to INR NIL {31 March 2023: 1,240.44 lacs)

35 Tax expense

{a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

As at
Particulars As at 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
{Restated}
Current tax expense - -
Current tax expense relating to prior years _ _
Total Current Tax (a) - .
MAT Credit entitlement of earlier years written off - -
Deferred Tax Expense {6,615.40} {8,105.22)
Tatal Deferred Tax [b) (6,619.40) (8,105.22)
Tax expense far the year (6,619.40) {8,105.22)
(b} Amaunts recognised in other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or For the year ended 31 March | Tax {expense)
. Net of tax
loss 2024 benefit
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans {0.02) 0.01 (0.01)
For the year ended 31 March Tax {expense) Net of tax
- 2023 (Restated) benefit
—.. £ IRemeasurements of the defined benefit plans 2.70 (0.68} 2.2
AT
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36 Related party disclosures

Nature of relationship Name of the entity
Joint venturer holding company Tata Sons Private Limited
Joint Venturers Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Non-exacutive Directors
Sanjay Bhupender Duit
Ritesh Sachdev
Bhavesh Madeka {upto 9 July 2022}
Ankur Gukati (upto 1 February 2024)
Hari Krishna Veerapaneni {from 1 February 2024}

Independent Directors Sucheta Shah {from 27 December 2022)
Kamlesh Parekh (from 27 December 2022)
Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar (from 27 December 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel; Deepak Porayath (Chief Executive Officer) (from 8 August 2023)
V. Vijay kumar (Chief Financial Officer){from 24 July 2023}
lagatpal Singh (upto 2 August 2023)
Arushi Singhal {Company Secretary){from 8 August 2023}

Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Cempany Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS)
Tata Communications Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Limited
Tata teleservices Private Limited

Joint venture of Holding compnay Arrow Infrasestate Private Limited
Gurgaon Realtech Limited

TRILIT4 Private Limited {upto 7 July 2022}

Fellow subsidiaries Tril Bengaluru Cansultants Private Jimited

|
|
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36 Related party disclasures
Related parties [¢continued)
The related party transactions during the year are as follows:

Year ended
Name of related party Nature of transaction Year ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
{Restated)
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Asset management fees incurred 1,351.42 1,293.89
Asset improvement fees incurred 311.79
Bank Guarantee comission incurred on behalf of Company by 208 15.48
related party
Core leasing Fees 1,752.36 133.29
Inter corporate deposit received (unsecured) - 100.00
Inter corporate deposit paid (unsecured) 225.00 -
Transfer of Gratuity & leave an amployee transfer - §3.42
Acquisition of Investments in TRIL Infopark Limited - 388,299.17
Expenses paid on behalf of related party - 6.79
Issue of Shares - 3,823.20
Finance cost incurred 11.28 20.25
Deputation Fees 254.48 170.62
Tata Consultancy Services Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 5,165.74 4,653.99
Recovery of Expenses 407.87 337.08
Software License Fees 3.53 3.53
Tata AlG General Insurance Compaay Limited Insurance expenses incurred .01 235.40
Arrow Infrasestate Privata Limited Inter corporate deposit received {unsecured) 500.00 -
Finance cost incurred 27.39 -
Gurgaon Realtech Limited Inter corporate deposit received {unsecured) . 1,600.00 -
Finance cost incurred 90.13 -
Tata Communications Limited Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 14.52 15.03
Property management expenses 9.37 -
Recovery of Expenses 36.81 32,68
Tata teleservices Private Limited Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 39.48 0.88
Recovery of Expenses 2.75 2.03
Properiy management expenses 22.32 23.40
Tril Bengaluru Consultants Private limited Manpower consultancy expenses 563.64 319.24
Expenses incurred on behalf 26.76 17.08
Transfer of Gratuity & leave on employee transfer - 13.52
CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc. Issue of Shares{including premium} - 56,300.96
Issue of NCD - 563,110.00
TRILIT4 Private Limited Issue of NCD - 70,890.00
Chief Financial Officer Remuneration 35.18 33.45
Company Secretary Remuneration 17,12 10.37
The significant related party balances as at the year end are as follows:
Asat As at
Name of related party 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
Payables
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Inter corporate deposit raceived (unsecured) - 225.00
Acquisition of Investments in TRIL Infopark Limited - 388,299.17
Asset Management Fees 6.70 -
Deputation Cost 17.42 -
Expenses paid on behalf of related party - 6.79
Core leasing Fees 407.51 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 20.25
Gratuity & Laave provision - 63.42
Tril Bengaluru Consultants Private limited
Expenses paid on behalf of related party 2.21 -
Trade payable - 6.29
Arrow Infrasestate Private Limited
Inter Corporate Depasits from Related Parties 527.3% -
Gurgaon Realtech Limited
Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 1,680.13 -
Tata Consultancy Services
Interest free security deposits 2,583.27 2,583.27
Tata Communlications Limited
Interest free security deposits 5.66 5.66
CPP Investment Beard Private Holdings (4) Inc.
Mon Convertible Debentures issued ©8,110.00 68,110.00
. TRIL T4 Private Limited
Non Convertible Debentures tssued 70,850.00 70,880.00
= ~Rerehyablés
; Tr adereceivables
i \Tata Gonsultancy Services 530.70 392,05
e (17 Tata Coramunhicatians Limited Page 30 479 14.04 ‘ﬁ;}}:a"‘“
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

37 Capital management

Far the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary cbjective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
toial capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Particular As at oot
Hiars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated])

Borrowings {long-term and short-term borrowings) {Note 16) 574,747.12 548,061.40
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {Note 12) {30,073.91) {1,635.54)
Net debt 544,673.21 546,425.86
Equity share capital 7.458.44 7,458.44
Other equity (257,967.18) {245,027 .55)
Total capital (250,468.74) (237,529.11)
Capital and net debt 294,204.47 308,896.75
Gearing ratio 185.13% 176.90%

In order to achieve this overall obhjective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interesi-bearing loans and berrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023.

38 Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{Restated)
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of each accounting year;
{a) (i) Principal 110.01 13.53

{ii) Interest -
{b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during the year¥;
{i) Interest
(iiy Payment - -
{c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006
{d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at tha end of the year - -
{e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
_—until such.date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
ﬁ:;g bu?_pq,se‘of_ disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
:S,Qi‘!_‘i%fl‘fafri&;me'ﬁ?‘i;m Enterprises Development Act, 2006

s Vit Y Y,
# Mo [rterest has been paid by the Company during the year. Page 31
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39 Earnings per share (EPS)

Year ended
Particulars Year andad 31 March 2023
31 March 2024

{Restated}

{Loss) for the year, attributable ta the equity shareholders of the Campany {12,935.62) {17,114.77)
Number of equity shares ourstanding at the beginning of the year 74,984,350 10,000
Equity shares issued during the year - 74,974,150
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year - 74,984,350
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Basic) B A 56,177,337
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares as at year end < 74,984,350 56,177,337
Earnings per share (EPS) from operations - Basic {17.258) (30.47)
Earnings per share (EPS} from operations - Diluted {17.25) {30.47)

a0 Carporate sacial responsibifity

vear endad Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023

31 March 2024 (Restated)

{a) amount required to be spent by the Company during the year* - -
{B) amount of expenditure incurred - 105.42
ic) shortfall at the end of the year - -
(d) rotal of previous years shartfall - .
(2] reason for shortfall - .
Envirenment
protection &
Livelihoad skill
davelopment

(M nature of CSR actlvitios

{g) details of relaied party transactions e.g. contribution to a trust controlled by the company in
relation to C3R expenditure

{h} movement of provision made with respect to Hability incurred by entering inte a contractual
obfigation.

1n pursuance of Section 135 of Compantes Act 2013, the Company has spent towards various activities as eaurmerated in the CSR Policy of the Campany which covers activities relaiing to
promotion of Education/environmental protection and livelihcods skill develapment.

* CSRis not applicable to the Company in the current Financlal year. However the same was applicable in the previous year with respect to the trensferor company (TRIL Infapark Limited Refer Note-dd
and 45] prior ta Merger. The Company has discharged the amount required to be spent in the previous year and there is no shortfzll.

41 Analytical Ratips
As at As at
Ratio Numerator Cenominatar 31 March 2023 9% Change Remarks
31 March 2024
{Restated)
Driven by d i kil Ital
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities c.15 1.28 -88.28% . riven V serease in wor _mg capltalan
increase in current borrowings.
Debt- i
R;iu Bty ) tal Gebt Sharehalder’s Equity 228 231 087%
— ——
N Earnings for debl sarvice Debn service = Interest & Lease . N .
Debt Service Net profit after taxes + Non- L Driven by increzse In current borrowings
. ) Paymenis + Principal 0.84 0.63 33.33%
Coverage ratio  |cash operating expensest fer Non convertible debentures.
Repayments
Interest
Ra on Equil
:“m ™ Equity Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholdes's Equity 5.30% 6.69% -1.3%%
ratg
Trade Receivabl
. ® |Revenua from operaticns Average Trade Receivable 26.37 24.71 6.72%
Tumover Ratio
TradePayable |, @@ iace fvarage Trade Payables 2.62 5.80 20.24%
Turnover Ratio
et Capital ing capital = Current assets Cri in working capital
t Capi ) et sales Working .Pl- ) 0.29) 1026 102.83% ! riven h\f decrease in wi ; g capital on
Turnover Ratio = Current lizbilities increase in current barrowings.
Net Profit ratio | Met Profit Net Sales -21.76% -30.07% 14.31%
} . . Capital Employed = Tangible Net
d
Return on Capital |Earnings defars interestand |\ 0 oo Getye + Deferred 9.11% 5.01% 210%
Employed taxes et
Tax Liability
a2 Other Statutery Infermation
[} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been nitiated or pending against the Campany for belding any Benami property.
{ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off except the following:
Balance outstanding {INR in Jacs) Relationship with
N Name of the struck off 5 As at
Serfal Number Nature of transactions As at 31 March struck aff
company 31 March 2023
2024 company
{Restated)
1 Thrane Tech Engineering Fire Hydrant Sprinkler 118 355 NA
Services

(i} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to be registered with RGC beyond the statutory period,
{iv} The Campany has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
{v) The Company has not advanced or laaned or invested funds to any other personis) or entityfies}), including foreign entities (Intermédiaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary

shall:
{a) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 8eneficiarfes) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
[vi] The Campany has nat received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including forelgn entitles {Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded in writing er otherwise) that
the Company shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarles) or
{b) provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Gltimate Beneficiaries,
{vii} The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
o } | b _ under the Incorme Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

43 Opecating segments
Basis for segmentation
The Company fs operating in the real estate and infrastrocture industry and has only domestic eperatiens. The Comgany has only one reportable business segment, which is development
of real estate and infrastructure facilities fincluding Intermatfonal Convention Centre facilities} and only one reporiable geographical segment. All assets of the Company are domiciled in
India and no other geographical area.

Major customers:
There are two cusiomers which contribute mare than ten per cent of revenue of the Company i e. 31 March 2024 Customer A- INR 6,030,249 Lacs and Customer B-INR 5,165.74 Lacs {31
March 2023 : Customer A- INR 5,974.80 Lacs and Customer B- |NR-4,882.01 Lacs)

a4 Scheme of Merger

The Company has given effect the Scheme of Merger by Absorption {'merger’} between TRIL Infogark Limited {transferor company} with Infopark Propertias Limited (iransferee company|
on receipt of certified copy of the Hon'hle Natianal Cornpany Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench {'NCLT'), dated 21 lune 2023 attested true copy received by the Company on 30 June 2023 apd
filled with the ROC an 24 July 2023 wherein the NCLT has approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption ['merger’) between TRIL Infopark Limited {transferor company) with Infopark
Properties Umited (transferee company}. The effective appointed date of the Scheme is 27 June 2022, Pursuant to the approved scheme of Merger , the Company has accounted for
merger in the baoks with affect from 01 April 2022 as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under Appendix € to IND AS 103 for commaon and joint control business
combinations.

A Consideraticn {INR ins lakhs}
I Particulars | Amount
‘Consideratiun paid In Cash | 388,299.17 |

§ The details of merger are as set cut in the table below:

[ Particulars Amount
a |Value of identified assets acquired
i |Property, plant and equipments 87.80
i |lnvestment property 165,091.87
iii |Investment preperty under construction 43,117.76
v |Right of use asset 122,560.48
v |Other non-current assets 14,258.17
vi [Current Assets -
-Cash and cash equivalents 2,359.51
~Trade receivables 2,037.17
-Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1,881.496
-Other current assets 2,266.26
Total Value of identified Assets acquired {a) 353,660.48
b |Vvalue of Liablities assumed
i |Current Liabiities
-Borrowings 5,000.00
-Provisians 26.32
-Trade payables 957.40
-Qther current liabilities 2,218.28
-Qther finzncial liabilitles 28,774.58
ii |Non-Current Liabilities
-Borrowings 256,626.17
-Provisions 728
-Other financial lizbilities 11,979.95
-Deferred Tax -
-0ther Nan current Fabifities 1,831.14
Total value of ltabillties assumed {b} 307,485.12
et Assets (a-h) 46,175.36

C Comrnon control acquisitiors deficit
Common control acquisition deficit arising from the merger has been recognised as fallows

Note Amt
Consideration A 388,299.17
Net assets as cn 2 Naverbar 2021 taken over B 46,175.36
Other Equity on conversion of compulsory convertible debentures into equity
shares for the F.Y 21-22 t 25,000.00
Qpening Reserve deficit of Subisidiary as on 02 November 2021 D {58.824.63)
Common control acquisition deficit {A-8-C.D) {258,299.18}

I Measurement of Assets & Liakilities
The valuation technigues used for measuring the material assets acquired and liabilitles assumed were as follows :
Assets cansidered Valuation Method
Proparty, Plant and Equipment , Invesiment Book Yalue
Inventory Book Value
et working Capital other than Inventory (Le., |Book Velue
Barrowings Book Value

Page 33

Page 107 of 108



INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED
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a5 Pricr Year's Figures

The Company has restated the audited financial results for peior geried year ended 31 March 2023 pursuant to:
a} The order by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench {'NCLT'), dated 21 June 2023 attested true copy received by the Company on 30 June 2023 and filled with
the ROC on 24 July 2023 wherein the NCLT has approved the Stheme of Merger by Absorption {'merger’) between TRIL Infopark Limited (transferar company) with Infopark Properties
Limited {transferes companyl. The effective appointed date of the Scheme is 27 June 2022 and
b} Reinstatement of Deferred Tax Liability (DTL} of the transferar Cornpany for prior periads an account of (i) temporary differences arising on lease equalization reserve, amortization of
brokerage expenses and unwinding of interest expense on security deposits inadvertently nal recognized eartier and (i} due to change in esti peclive adoption of rate of
incame tax as per the old tax regime In place of the rate taken as per the agw tax regime. The retum for the year ended 31 March 2023 has not been filled by the Company snd the
Cempany plans to opi for the rate as per the old tax regime while filiing the income tax retrn for this year and
¢} Recognition of Deferred Tax Asset (DTA) on the brought forward business lasses and unwinding of interest on barrowings of the transteree Company after considering the relevant
facts and circumstances that the Company has convincing evidence based on its business plans and budgets for the utilization of these tax losses past-merger of the transferar Campany
with the transferee Company
in accordance with the requirements of Para 9 of Appendix C of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations. Thus, the amounts in these awdited financial results have been increased/(decreased)
25 compared to amounts in the previously published financial resuits by the below-

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2023
Tatal Income increased 48,375.21
Deferred tax expenses/ (reversal)® {8,105.22})
Loss bafore tax for the year {increased) [479.97)
Loss after tax for the year decceased 7.625.25
EPS- Basic increased(Rs) 13.57
EPS- Diluted increased(Rs) 13.57
Deferred Tax Asset as at* 3,278.69
Total compherensive loss for the year decreased 7,627.27
Met Waorth {decreased} {272.816.57)
* Including impact of restalement as explained in Note 45(b) and [c] above
-Deferred Tax {reversaly (9,857.00)
-Deferved TAX asset as at 3,270.00
46 Subsequent Events

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheel date.

ForB$ R & Co. LLP Far and on behalf of the Baard of Directars
Chartered Accauntanis of Infopark Properties Limited
{Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646
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